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Benefits and other changes in policy reserves:

FIA embedded derivatives
$42,240 $145,718 $(474,269)

The Company has FIA contracts that permit the holder to elect an interest rate return or an equity market component,
where interest credited to the contracts is linked to the performance of various equity indices such as the S&P 500,

Dow Jones Industrials or the NASDAQ 100 Index. This feature represents an embedded derivative under the
Derivatives and Hedging Topic of the FASB ASC. The FIA embedded derivative is valued at fair value and included

in the liability for contractholder funds on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets with changes in fair value
included as a component of benefits and other changes in policy reserves in the Company s Consolidated Statements of
Operations.
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When FIA deposits are received, a portion of the deposit is used to purchase derivatives consisting of a combination
of call options and futures contracts on the applicable market indices to fund the index credits due to FIA
contractholders. The majority of all such call options are one year options purchased to match the funding
requirements of the underlying policies. On the respective anniversary dates of the index policies, the index used to
compute the annual index credit is reset and the Company purchases new one, two or three year call options to fund
the next index credit. The Company manages the cost of these purchases through the terms of its FIA contracts, which
permit the Company to change caps or participation rates, subject to guaranteed minimums on each contract s
anniversary date. The change in the fair value of the call options and futures contracts is designed to offset the change
in the fair value of the FIA embedded derivative. The call options and futures contracts are marked to fair value with
the change in fair value included as a component of net investment gains (losses). The change in fair value of the call
options and futures contracts includes the gains and losses recognized at the expiration of the instrument term or upon
early termination and the changes in fair value of open positions.

Other market exposures are hedged periodically depending on market conditions and the Company s risk tolerance.
The Company s FIA hedging strategy economically hedges the equity returns and exposes the Company to the risk that
unhedged market exposures result in divergence between changes in the fair value of the liabilities and the hedging
assets. The Company uses a variety of techniques including direct estimation of market sensitivities and value-at-risk

to monitor this risk daily. The Company intends to continue to adjust the hedging strategy as market conditions and

the Company s risk tolerance change.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by its counterparties on the call options and
reflects assumptions regarding this nonperformance risk in the fair value of the call options. The nonperformance risk

is the net counterparty exposure based on the fair value of the open contracts less

F-330
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collateral held. The credit risk associated with such agreements is minimized by purchasing such agreements from
financial institutions with ratings above A3 from Moody s Investor Services or A— from Standard and Poor s
Corporation. Additionally, the Company maintains a policy of requiring all derivative contracts to be governed by an
International Swaps and Derivatives Association ( ISDA ) Master Agreement.

Information regarding the Company s exposure to credit loss on the call options it holds is presented in the following
table:

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Credit Notional Fair Collateral Notional Fair Collateral
Counterparty Rating  Amount Value Held Amount Value Held
Barclay s Bank Aa3 $ 172,190 $ 5,827 $ $ 146,685 $ 14875 $
Bank of New York Aa2 19,950 1,018
Citibank A3 5,000 299
BNP Paribas Aa2 48,274 3,297
Credit Suisse Aal 88,500 1,566 147,250 6,707
Bank of America A2 1,568,602 53,993 1,874,606 72,204 79,025
Deutsche Bank Aa3 1,624,756 50,286 21,299 1,146,137 50,497 48,075
Morgan Stanley A2 1,654,620 49,796 25,924 2,401,453 124,401 130,021

$ 5,108,668 $ 161,468 $ 47,223 $ 5,789,355 $ 273,298 § 257,121

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents received from counterparties for call option collateral, which is
included in other liabilities on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets. This call option collateral limits the
maximum amount of loss due to credit risk that the Company would incur if parties to the call options failed
completely to perform according to the terms of the contracts to $114,245 and $16,177 at December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

The Company is required to maintain minimum ratings as a matter of routine practice in its ISDA agreements. Under
some ISDA agreements, the Company has agreed to maintain certain financial strength ratings. A downgrade below
these levels could result in termination of the open derivative contracts between the parties, at which time any
amounts payable by the Company or the counterparty would be dependent on the market value of the underlying
derivative contracts. Downgrades of the Company have given multiple counterparties the right to terminate ISDA
agreements. No ISDA agreements have been terminated, although the counterparties have reserved the right to
terminate the ISDA agreements at any time. In certain transactions, the Company and the counterparty have entered
into a collateral support agreement requiring either party to post collateral when the net exposures exceed
pre-determined thresholds. These thresholds vary by counterparty and credit rating. Downgrades of the Company s
ratings have increased the threshold amount in the Company s collateral support agreements, reducing the amount of
collateral held and increasing the credit risk to which the Company is exposed.

The Company held 2,915 and 2,687 futures contracts at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The fair value of
futures contracts represents the cumulative unsettled variation margin. The Company provides cash collateral to the

Table of Contents 4
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counterparties for the initial and variation margin on the futures contracts which is included in cash and cash
equivalents in the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amount of collateral held by the counterparties for
such contracts at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $12,925 and $12,123, respectively.

The Company also used credit replication swaps to effectively diversify and add corporate credit exposure to its
investment portfolio and manage asset/liability duration mismatches. The economic risk and return characteristics
matched that of a BBB rated corporate bond portfolio with lower transaction costs. The swaps are marked to fair value
with the change in fair value included as a component of revenue on the Consolidated

F-331
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Statements of Operations. The change in fair value of the swaps includes the gains and losses recognized at the
expiration of the swap term or upon early termination and the changes in fair value of open positions. During 2009,
the Company closed all of the outstanding credit replication swaps. The Company owned four debt securities that
contained credit default swaps during 2010, 2009 and 2008. The Company disposed of three of these securities during
2010. These embedded derivatives have been bifurcated from their host contract, marked to fair value and included in
other liabilities on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets with the change in fair value included as a component
of net investment income on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations. These credit default swaps allow
an investor to put back to the Company a portion of the security s par value upon the occurrence of a default event by
the bond issuer. A default event is defined as a bankruptcy, failure to pay, obligation acceleration, or restructuring.
Similar to other debt instruments, the Company s maximum principal loss is limited to the original investment of $989
and $116,466 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

NOTE 10: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company s financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value have been classified, for disclosure purposes, based
on a hierarchy defined by FASB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures . The hierarchy gives the
highest ranking to fair values determined using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities (Level 1) and the lower ranking to fair values determined using methodologies and models with
unobservable inputs (Level 3). An asset s or a liability s classification is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to its measurement. For example, a Level 3 fair value measurement may include inputs that are both
observable (Levels 1 and 2) and unobservable (Level 3). The levels of the fair value hierarchy are described in Note 2.
The following table provides information as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 about the Company s financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As of December 31, 2010
Assets
Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale
Corporates $ $ 11,452,989 $ 197,058 $ 11,650,047
RMBS 880,495 20,676 901,171
CMBS 747,154 183 747,337
Hybrids 764,772 8,034 772,806
ABS 164,318 355,807 520,125
U.S. Government 226,617 226,617
Municipal 543,374 543,374
Equity securities available-for-sale 292,777 292,777
Derivative instruments- call options 161,468 161,468
Other assets  futures contracts 2,309 2,309
Total assets at fair value $ 226,617 $ 15,009,656 $ 581,758 $ 15,818,031
Liabilities
AFS embedded derivatives $ $ $ 432 $ 432
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FIA embedded derivatives 1,462,592 1,462,592

Total liabilities at fair value $ $ $ 1,463,024 $ 1,463,024
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As of December 31, 2009
Assets
Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale
Corporates $ $ 9,744,742 $ 302,064 $ 10,046,806
RMBS 968,326 4,384 972,710
CMBS 1,230,054 20,701 1,250,755
Hybrids 847,810 10,996 858,806
ABS 256,575 324,057 580,632
U.S. Government 237,533 237,533
Municipal 214,761 214,761
Equity securities available-for-sale 5,930 354,650 6,694 367,274
Trading securities 105,641 134,489 240,130
Separate account assets 1,662 1,662
Derivative instruments- call options 273,298 273,298
Other assets futures contracts 2,095 2,095
Total assets at fair value $ 350,766 $ 14,026,800 $ 668,896 $ 15,046,462
Liabilities
AFS embedded derivatives $ $ $ 13,770 $ 13,770
FIA embedded derivatives 1,420,352 1,420,352
Separate account liabilities 1,662 1,662
Total liabilities at fair value $ 1,662 $ $ 1,434,122 $ 1,435,784

F-333
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The following tables summarize changes to the Company s financial instruments carried at fair value and classified
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for 2010 and 2009. This summary excludes any impact of amortization of

DAC, PVIF, and DSI. The gains and losses below may include changes in fair value due in part to observable inputs
that are a component of the valuation methodology.

Total (Losses) Gains

Net
Net Transfer
Balance at Purchases, in Balance at
Included
For the Year Ended Beginning in Included  Issuances & (Out) of End of
December 31, 2010 of Year Earnings in AOCI Settlements Level 3(a) Year
Assets
Fixed maturity securities
available-for-sale:
Corporates $ 302,064 $ 1,067 $ (11,092) $ (94,678) $ (303) $ 197,058
RMBS 4,384 16,292 20,676
CMBS 20,701 382 (530) (20,553) 183 183
Hybrids 10,996 (2,962) 8,034
ABS 324,057 (16,406) 13,229 25,142 9,785 355,807
Equity securities
available-for-sale 6,694 (2,196) 6,005 (10,503)

Total assets at fair value $ 668,896 $ (17,153) $ 7,612 $ (100,592) $ 22995 $ 581,758

Liabilities

AFS embedded

derivatives $ 13,770  $ 5,511  $ 62 $ (18,911) $ $ 432
Fixed indexed annuities 1,420,352 42,240 1,462,592

Total liabilities at fair
value $ 1434,122 $ 47,751 $ 62 $ (18911) $ $ 1,463,024

Total (Losses) Gains

Net Net Transfer
Balance at Purchases, in Balance at
Included Issuances
For the Year Ended Beginning in Included & (Out) of End of
December 31, 2009 of Year Earnings in AOCI  Settlements Level 3(a) Year

Assets

Table of Contents
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available-for-sale:
Corporates

RMBS

CMBS

Hybrids

ABS

Municipal

Equity securities
available-for-sale

Total assets at fair
value

Liabilities

AFS embedded
derivatives

Fixed indexed annuities

Total liabilities at fair
value
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$ 1,068,785
215,674
69,464
204,466
121,981

314

72,734

$ 1,753,418

$ 39,000
1,274,634

$ 1,313,634

$ (40,524)
(160)

(2,735)

(6,420)

$ (49,839)

$ (25,230)
145,718

$ 120,488

$ (6,187) $ (5106) $  (714904) $ 302,064

4,348 (113) (215,365) 4,384

1,777 (1,843) (48,697) 20,701

719 (4,304) (187,150) 10,996

9,743 176,034 16,299 324,057
(314)

(23,824) (35,796) 6,694

$ (13424) $ 164,668 $ (1,185927) $ 668,896

$ $ $ $ 13,770
1,420,352
$ $ $ $ 1,434,122

(a) The net transfers in and out of Level 3 in 2010 and 2009 were exclusively to or from Level 2.
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Due to market conditions there were a number of securities that were inactive as of December 31, 2008 but became
actively traded during 2009 and were reclassified to Level 2.

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value include accrued investment income, due to affiliates, due from
affiliates, and portions of other liabilities. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying
values due to their short duration. Financial instruments not carried at fair value also include investment contracts
which are comprised of deferred annuities, FIAs and immediate annuities. The Company estimates the fair values of
investment contracts based on expected future cash flows, discounted at their current market rates. The carrying value
of investment contracts was $12,563,045 and $12,829,151 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The fair
value of investment contracts was $11,027,282 and $11,049,077 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The fair value of the Company s fixed and fixed indexed annuity contracts is based on their approximate account
values.

The fair value of the Company s $244,584 note payable to affiliate approximates its book value.
NOTE 11: REINSURANCE

The Company reinsures portions of its policy risks with other insurance companies including an affiliate of OM. The
use of reinsurance does not discharge an insurer from liability on the insurance ceded. The insurer is required to pay in
full the amount of its insurance liability regardless of whether it is entitled to or able to receive payment from the
reinsurer. The portion of risks exceeding the Company s retention limit is reinsured with other insurers. The Company
seeks reinsurance coverage in order to limit its exposure to mortality losses and enhance capital management. The
Company follows reinsurance accounting when there is adequate risk transfer. Otherwise, the deposit method of
accounting is followed. The Company also assumes policy risks from other insurance companies.

The effect of reinsurance on premiums earned and benefits incurred for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008 were as follows:

Net Premiums Earned Net Benefits Incurred
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009 2008
Direct $ 347,485 $ 388,683 $ 452,401 $ 1,067,363 $ 1,309,739 $ 1,037,114
Assumed 47,770 50,302 47,133 40,851 39,766 41,454
Ceded (175,285) (186,570) (225,702) (245,220) (252,170) (252,157)
Net $ 219970 $ 252415 $ 273832 $ 862994 $ 1,097,335 $ 826411

The Company entered into various reinsurance agreements with Old Mutual Reassurance (Ireland) Ltd. ( OM Re ), an
affiliated company of OM, whereby OM Re assumes a portion of the risk covering certain life insurance policies. As

of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had a reinsurance recoverable of $914,697 and $845,328, respectively,
associated with those reinsurance transactions. Reinsurance recoveries recognized as a reduction of benefits and other
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changes in policy reserves amounted to $88,942, $86,556, and $40,349 during 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The
premiums ceded by the Company to OM Re amounted to $30,163, $34,231, and $38,205 for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The reserves ceded to OM Re are secured by trust assets of
$708,346 and $627,677 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and a letter of credit in the amount of $775,000
at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Effective September 30, 2008, the Company entered into a yearly renewable term quota share reinsurance agreements
with OM Re, whereby OM Re assumes a portion of the risk that policyholders exercise the waiver of surrender charge
features on certain deferred annuity policies. This agreement did not meet risk transfer requirements to qualify as
reinsurance under GAAP. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company

F-335
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expensed net fees of $4,797, $4,568, and $38 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Other than the relationships discussed above with OM Re, the Company does not have significant concentrations of
reinsurance with any one reinsurer that could have a material impact on the Company s financial position. The
Company monitors both the financial condition of individual reinsurers and risk concentration arising from similar
geographic regions, activities and economic characteristics of reinsurers to reduce the risk of default by such
reinsurers.

The Company has secured certain reinsurance recoverable balances with various forms of collateral, including secured
trusts and letters of credit. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company had $816,793 and $800,586 of unsecured
reinsurance recoverable balances from unaffiliated reinsurers.

Amounts payable or recoverable for reinsurance on paid and unpaid claims are not subject to periodic or maximum
limits. During 2010, 2009 and 2008, the Company did not write off any reinsurance balances nor did it commute any

ceded reinsurance.

No policies issued by the Company have been reinsured with a foreign company which is controlled, either directly or
indirectly, by a party not primarily engaged in the business of insurance.

The Company has not entered into any reinsurance agreements in which the reinsurer may unilaterally cancel any
reinsurance for reasons other than nonpayment of premiums or other similar credit issues.

NOTE 12: OTHER LIABILITIES

The components of other liabilities were as follows:

As of December 31,

2010 2009
Call options collateral held $ 47,223 $ 257,121
Retained asset account 191,065 184,988
Deferred reinsurance revenue 43,577 58,042
Derivative financial instruments  liabilities 432 13,770
Other 109,542 173,155
Total Other liabilities $ 391,839 $ 687,076

NOTE 13: INSURANCE SUBSIDIARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND REGULATORY MATTERS

The Company s insurance subsidiaries file financial statements with state insurance regulatory authorities and the
National Association of Insurance Commissioners ( NAIC ) that are prepared in accordance with Statutory Accounting
Principles ( SAP ) prescribed or permitted by such authorities, which may vary materially from GAAP. Prescribed SAP
includes the Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual of the NAIC as well as state laws, regulations and
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administrative rules. Permitted SAP encompasses all accounting practices not so prescribed. The principal differences
between statutory financial statements and financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP are that statutory
financial statements do not reflect DAC, some bond portfolios may be carried at amortized cost, assets and liabilities
are presented net of reinsurance, contractholder liabilities are generally valued using more conservative assumptions
and certain assets are non-admitted.

F-336
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The combined statutory capital and surplus of the Company s insurance subsidiaries was $902,118 and $816,375 at
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The combined statutory income (loss) was $246,731, $(322,688) and
$(290,024) for the years ended 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Life insurance companies are subject to certain Risk-Based Capital ( RBC ) requirements as specified by the NAIC.
The RBC is used to evaluate the adequacy of capital and surplus maintained by an insurance company in relation to
risks associated with: (i) asset risk, (ii) insurance risk, (iii) interest rate risk and (iv) business risk. The Company
monitors the RBC of the Company s insurance subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, each of the
Company s insurance subsidiaries has exceeded the minimum RBC requirements.

The Company s insurance subsidiaries are restricted by state laws and regulations as to the amount of dividends they
may pay to their parent without regulatory approval in any year, the purpose of which is to protect affected insurance
policyholders, depositors or investors. Any dividends in excess of limits are deemed extraordinary and require
approval. Based on statutory results as of December 31, 2010, in accordance with applicable dividend restrictions the
Company s subsidiaries could pay dividends of $90,212 to FGLH in 2011 without obtaining regulatory approval.
During 2010 an ordinary dividend of $59,000 was paid to FGLH. No dividends were paid during 2009 and 2008.

NOTE 14: ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Net unrealized gains and losses on investment securities classified as AFS are reduced by deferred income taxes and
adjustments to DAC, PVIF and DSI that would have resulted had such gains and losses been realized. Net unrealized
gains and losses on AFS investment securities reflected as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) were as follows as of December 31, 2010 and 2009:

As of December 31,

2010 2009
Net unrealized investment gains (losses), net of tax
Unrealized investments gains (losses) $ 273,459 $ (644,567)
Adjustments to DAC, PVIF and DSI (226,657) 396,934
Deferred tax valuation allowance (2,001) (51,107)
Deferred income tax (liability) asset (16,354) 86,671
Net unrealized investment gains (losses), net of tax 28,447 (212,069)
Other, net of tax (784) 123
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax $ 27,663 $ (211,946)

F-337
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Changes in net unrealized gains and losses on investment securities classified as AFS recognized in other

comprehensive income and loss for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 were as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Changes in unrealized investment gains (losses):
Changes in unrealized investment gains (losses) before
reclassification adjustment $ 880,075 $ 2,007,578 $ (3,047,081)
Net reclassification adjustment for losses included in net income
(loss) 20,307 268,909 579,830
Changes in unrealized investment gains (losses) after
reclassification adjustment 900,382 2,276,487 (2,467,251)
Adjustments to DAC, PVIF and DSI (612,827) 163,234 (46,229)
Changes in deferred tax valuation allowance 49,106 (10,139) (40,968)
Changes in deferred income tax asset/liability (100,617) (864,797) 890,568
Changes in net unrealized investment gains (losses), net of tax 236,044 1,564,785 (1,663,880)
Changes in non-credit related OTTI recognized in OCI:
Changes in non-credit related OTTI 17,644 (169,343)
Adjustments to DAC, PVIF and DSI (10,764) 103,300
Changes in deferred income tax asset/liability (2,408) 23,115
Changes in non-credit related OTTI, net of tax 4,472 (42,928)
Other, net of tax (907) 60 100
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax $ 239,609 $ 1,521,917 $ (1,663,780)

NOTE 15: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

The Company leases office space under non-cancelable operating leases that expire in May 2021. The Company also
leases office furniture and office equipment under noncancelable operating leases that expire in 2012. The Company is
not involved in any material sale-leaseback transactions. For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, rent

expense was $2,678, $3,364, and 4,408, respectively.

At December 31, 2010, the minimum rental commitments under the non-cancelable leases are as follows:
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Years Ending December 31: Amount
2011 $ 2,255
2012 2,031
2013 1,967
2014 2,026
2015 2,026
Thereafter 12,659
Total $ 22,964
F-338
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The Company subleases a portion of its office space under a non-cancelable lease which expires in May 2011. The
minimum aggregate rental commitment on this sublease is $358. The total rental amount to be received by the
Company under this sublease is $159.

Contingencies
Business Concentration, Significant Risks and Uncertainties

Financial markets in the United States and elsewhere have experienced extreme volatility and disruption for more than
two years, due largely to the stresses affecting the global banking system. Like other life insurers, the Company has
been adversely affected by these conditions. The Company is exposed to financial and capital markets risk, including
changes in interest rates and credit spreads which have had an adverse effect on the Company s results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity. As detailed in the following paragraph, the Company expects to continue to face
challenges and uncertainties that could adversely affect the Company s results of operations and financial condition.

The Company s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the market price and cash flow variability associated
with changes in interest rates. A rise in interest rates, in the absence of other countervailing changes, will increase the
net unrealized loss position of the Company s investment portfolio and, if long-term interest rates rise dramatically
within a six to twelve month time period, certain of the Company s products may be exposed to disintermediation risk.
Disintermediation risk refers to the risk that policyholders may surrender their contracts in a rising interest rate
environment, requiring the Company to liquidate assets in an unrealized loss position. This risk is mitigated to some
extent by the high level of surrender charge protection provided by the Company s products.

Regulatory and Litigation Matters

The Company is assessed amounts by the state guaranty funds to cover losses to policyholders of insolvent or
rehabilitated insurance companies. Those mandatory assessments may be partially recovered through a reduction in
future premium taxes in certain states. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company has accrued $7,225 and
$12,325 for guaranty fund assessments, respectively. Future premium tax deductions at December 31, 2010 and 2009
are estimated at $4,622 and $8,134, respectively.

On April 19, 2010, the federal court approved a settlement of litigation related to an asserted class action

Ow/Negrete v. Fidelity & Guaranty Life Insurance Company pending in the United States District Court, Central
District of California. The Settlement Agreement Order became final on July 1, 2010 and provides for relief which is
available to persons age 65 and older who purchased certain deferred annuities with surrender charges of 7 years or
greater, with the exception of multi year guaranteed annuities. The estimated cost for the settlement is $11,500, of
which $10,300 was paid in 2010. The Company had previously established a liability for the estimated cost of this
settlement and, therefore, the settlement did not have a material effect on the Company s results of operations in 2010.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company is involved in various pending or threatened legal proceedings,
including purported class actions, arising from the conduct of business. In some instances, these proceedings include
claims for unspecified or substantial punitive damages and similar types of relief in addition to amounts for alleged
contractual liability or requests for equitable relief. In the opinion of management and in light of existing insurance,
reinsurance and established reserves, such litigation is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company s
financial position, although it is possible that the results of operations could be materially affected by an unfavorable
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outcome in any one annual period.
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NOTE 16: DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The Company has a 401(k) Plan (the 401(k) Plan ) in which eligible participants may defer a fixed amount or a
percentage of their eligible compensation, subject to limitations. The Company makes a discretionary matching
contribution of up to 5% of eligible compensation. The Company recognized expenses for contributions to the 401(k)
Plan of approximately $1,168, $750, and $2,055 for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The Company has established a Nonqualified Defined Contribution Plan for independent agents. The Company makes
contributions to the plan based on both the Company s and the agent s performance. Contributions are discretionary and
evaluated annually. The Company contributed $1,600, $0, and $0 during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009

and 2008, respectively.

NOTE 17: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after December 31, 2010 through April 26, 2011, the
date these financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, the Company did not have any material
recognizable subsequent events; however, the Company did have unrecognizable subsequent events as discussed
below:

Purchase agreement involving the Company

On April 6, 2011, pursuant to the First Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 17,
2011 (the F&G Stock Purchase Agreement ), between Harbinger F&G and OMGUK, Harbinger F&G acquired from
OMGUK all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company and OMGUK s interest in certain notes
receivable from the Company in consideration for $350,000, which could be reduced by up to $50,000 post-closing if
certain regulatory approval is not received. The Company s obligation to OMGUK under the notes, including interest,
was $244,584 at December 31, 2010 and was assigned to Harbinger F&G concurrently with the closing of the
transaction pursuant to terms of a Deed of Novation. Approval of the transaction was received from the Maryland
Insurance Administration on March 31, 2011 and from the New York State Insurance Department on April 1, 2011.

Prior to the closing of the sale transaction, OMGUK financed a total of $775,000 of statutory reserves ceded to OM
Re with a letter of credit (See Note 6 for a description of other indebtedness). OMGUK will continue to provide this

financing after closing in the following manner:

Statutory reserves of $280,000 ceded to OM Re on annuity business will be financed by OMGUK through
letters of credit. This requirement for reserves is expected to decrease significantly over the next few years.

OMGUK will act as the legal guarantor of up to $535,000 of statutory reserves previously ceded to OM Re on
the life insurance business until December 31, 2012. Harbinger F&G also serves as a guarantor.

As part of the transaction the long-term notes from affiliated companies of OM, discussed in Note 6, were settled for
the principal amount plus accrued interest.

The Company possesses certain tax attributes, including the net operating loss carryforwards, capital loss
carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards disclosed in Note 7, which will become annually limited in terms of
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realization as a consequence of the acquisition of the Company by Harbinger F&G from OMGUK.

Additionally, the F&G Stock Purchase Agreement between Harbinger F&G and OMGUK includes a Guarantee and
Pledge Agreement which creates certain obligations for the Company as a grantor and also
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grants a security interest to OMGUK of the Company s equity interest in FGL Insurance in the event that Harbinger
F&G fails to perform in accordance with the terms of the F&G Stock Purchase Agreement.

Reinsurance transactions

On April 7, 2011, FGL Insurance recaptured all of the life insurance business ceded to OM Re. OM Re transferred
assets with a fair value of $664,132 to FGL Insurance in settlement of all of OM Re s obligations under these
reinsurance agreements. On April 7, 2011, FGL Insurance re-ceded on a coinsurance basis a significant portion of this
business to a newly-formed, wholly-owned captive reinsurance company, Raven Reinsurance Company ( Raven Re ),
domiciled in Vermont. Raven Re was capitalized by a $250 capital contribution from FGL Insurance and a surplus
note issued to OMGUK in the principal amount of $95,000. Raven Re will finance up to $535,000 of the reserves for
this business with a letter of credit facility provided by a financial institution and guaranteed by OMGUK and
Harbinger F&G.

On January 26, 2011, Harbinger F&G entered into a commitment agreement with an unaffiliated reinsurer committing
FGL Insurance to enter into one of two amendments to an existing treaty with the unaffiliated reinsurer. On April 8,
2011, FGL Insurance also ceded significantly all of the remaining life insurance business that it had retained to the
unaffiliated reinsurance company under the first of the two amendments with the unaffiliated reinsurer. FGL Insurance
transferred assets with a fair value of $423,673 to the unaffiliated entity and received a ceding commission of
$139,600. Under the terms of the commitment agreement, on April 25, 2011, Harbinger F&G elected the amendment
providing that FGL Insurance will cede to this unaffiliated reinsurance company all of the business currently reinsured
with Raven Re by November 30, 2012.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, December 31,
2011 2010
(Unaudited)
(In thousands)
ASSETS
Investments:
Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale, at fair value $ 15,225,309 15,361,477
Equity securities available-for-sale, at fair value 296,201 292,777
Derivative investments 208,527 161,468
Other invested assets 88,831 90,838
Total investments 15,818,868 15,906,560
Cash and cash equivalents 904,688 639,247
Accrued investment income 210,118 202,226
Notes receivable from affiliates, including accrued interest 76,257
Deferred policy acquisition costs and present value of in-force 1,578,911 1,764,868
Reinsurance recoverable 1,842,924 1,830,083
Deferred tax asset, net 164,820 151,702
Other assets 59,051 41,902
Total assets $ 20,579,380 20,612,845
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER S EQUITY

Liabilities:
Future policy benefits $ 3,464,619 3,473,956
Contractholder funds 14,960,245 15,081,681
Liability for policy and contract claims 62,091 63,427
Notes payable to affiliate, including accrued interest 248,505 244,584
Due to affiliates 1,649 12,719
Other liabilities 491,569 391,839
Total liabilities $ 19,228,678 19,268,206
Shareholder s equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 1,000 shares authorized, 102.5 shares issued
and outstanding
Additional paid-in capital 1,754,571 1,754,571
Retained earnings (deficit) (425,084) (437,595)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 21,215 27,663
Total shareholder s equity $ 1,350,702 1,344,639
Total liabilities and shareholder s equity $ 20,579,380 20,612,845
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See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY & GUARANTY LIFE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

For the Three Months Ended March 31,

Revenues:

Premiums

Net investment income

Interest earned on affiliated notes receivable
Net investment gains

Insurance and investment product fees and other

Total revenues

Benefits and expenses:

Benefits and other changes in policy reserves

Acquisition and operating expenses, net of deferrals
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs and intangibles
Interest expense on notes payable to affiliate

Total benefits and expenses

Income before income taxes
Income tax benefit

Net income

Supplemental disclosures:
Total other-than-temporary impairments

Portion of other-than-temporary impairments included in other comprehensive income

Net other-than-temporary impairments
Other investment gains

Total net investment gains

2011 2010
(In thousands)
$ 53,684 $ 60,626
217,145 227,936
1,230 1,459
84,485 107,101
23,036 24,656
379,580 421,778
220,905 281,573
22,059 24,100
125,985 89,189
5,922 5,925
374,871 400,787
4,709 20,991
(7,802) (74,219)
$ 12,511 $ 95210
$ 2939 $ (8,905
(3,142)
(2,939) (5,763)
87,424 112,864
$ 84485 $ 107,101

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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FIDELITY & GUARANTY LIFE HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER S EQUITY

Balance, December 31, 2010
Net income
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized investment losses
Other

Comprehensive income
Balance, March 31, 2011

Balance, December 31, 2009
Net income
Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized investment gains
Other

Comprehensive income
Capital contribution and other

Balance, March 31, 2010

(UNAUDITED)
Accumulated
Additional Retained Other
Common  Paid-in- Earnings Comprehensive
Income
Stock Capital (Deficit) (Loss)
(In thousands)
$ $ 1,754,571 $ 437595 $ 27,663
12,511
(6,738)
290
$ $ 1,754,571 $ (425,084) $ 21,215
$ $ 1,757,641 $ (609,692) $ (211,946)
95,210
157,523
243
29,890
$ $ 1,787,531 $ (514482) $ (54,180)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Total
Shareholder s

Equity
$ 1,344,639
12,511

(6,738)
290

6,063
$ 1,350,702

$ 936,003
95,210

157,523
243

252,976
29,890

$ 1,218,869
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FIDELITY & GUARANTY LIFE HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (UNAUDITED)
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 12,511 $ 95210

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Realized capital and other gains on investments (84,485) (107,101)
Deferred income taxes (8,492) (74,853)
Amortization of fixed maturity discounts and premiums 4,602 (452)
Amortization of deferred acquisition costs, intangibles, and software 127,001 91,134

Deferral of policy acquisition costs (25,012) (30,219)
Interest credited/index credit to contractholder account balances 147,348 189,814

Charges assessed to contractholders for mortality and administration (7,410) (7,805)
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Trading securities (2,590)
Reinsurance recoverable (1,908) 6,519

Accrued investment income (7,892) (13,159)
Future policy benefits (9,337) 11,853

Liability for policy and contract claims (1,336) 522

Change in affiliates (11,070) 3,930

Other assets and other liabilities 139,426 (8,415)
Net cash provided by operating activities 273,946 154,388

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from investments, sold, matured or repaid:

Fixed maturities 616,799 750,626
Equity securities 2,393 5,675
Other invested assets 2,848 16
Derivative investments and other 41,888 104,485
Cost of investments acquired:

Fixed maturities (397,032) (968,734)
Equity securities (36,504)
Derivative investments and other (23,634) (23,277)
Net (increase) decrease in policy loans (756) 1,049
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 242,506 (166,664)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Capital contribution from parent company and other 29,890
Contractholder account deposits 200,509 296,356
Contractholder account withdrawals (472,816) (512,825)
Drawdown of revolving credit facility from affiliate 21,296 23,616
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Net cash used in financing activities (251,011)
Change in cash & cash equivalents 265,441
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of period 639,247
Cash & cash equivalents, end of period $ 904,688

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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(162,963)

(175,239)
823,284

$ 648,045
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)
March 31, 2011
(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE 1: ORGANIZATION, NATURE OF OPERATIONS, AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Organization and Nature of Operations

The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of Fidelity & Guaranty Life Holdings, Inc. (the Company
or FGLH ), a Delaware corporation, which was a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of OM Group (UK) Limited

( OMGUK ) at March 31, 2011. OMGUK is a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Old Mutual plc of London, England
( OM ).

The Company s primary business is the sale of individual life insurance products and annuities through independent
agents, managing general agents, and specialty brokerage firms and in selected institutional markets. The Company s
principal products are deferred annuities (including fixed indexed annuities), immediate annuities and life insurance
products. The Company s insurance subsidiaries are licensed in all fifty states and the District of Columbia and
markets products through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Fidelity & Guaranty Life Insurance Company (formerly, OM
Financial Life Insurance Company, ( FGL Insurance )), which is domiciled in Maryland, and Fidelity & Guaranty Life
Insurance Company of New York (formerly, OM Financial Life Insurance Company of New York, ( FGL NY
Insurance )), which is domiciled in New York.

See Note 11 for a discussion of the sale by OM of all of the Company s capital stock to Harbinger F&G, LLC
(Harbinger F&G), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Harbinger Group Inc. ( HGI ) on April 6, 2011 for $350,000 (which
could be reduced by up to $50,000 post closing if certain regulatory approval is not received) and the assignment to
Harbinger F&G of notes receivable from the Company. Following this sale, the Company s charter was amended to
change its name from Old Mutual U.S. Life Holdings, Inc. to Fidelity & Guaranty Life Holdings, Inc. Similarly, the
charters of OM Financial Life Insurance Company and OM Financial Life Insurance Company of New York were
amended to change their names to Fidelity & Guaranty Life Insurance Company and Fidelity & Guaranty Life
Insurance Company of New York, respectively. The charter amendments for the Company and OM Financial Life
Insurance Company were accepted by Delaware and Maryland on April 11, 2011, making their name changes
effective on April 11, 2011. The charter amendment for OM Financial Life Insurance Company of New York was
accepted by New York on April 14, 2011, making its name change effective on April 14, 2011.

Basis of Presentation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company, without audit, pursuant to the rules and
regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC ) and, in the opinion of the Company, include all
adjustments (which are normal and recurring in nature) necessary to present fairly the financial position of the
Company at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and the results of operations and cash flows for the three

months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ( GAAP )
have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such SEC rules and regulations.

Operating results for the three month period ended March 31, 2011 are not necessarily indicative of the results that

may be expected for the year ending December 31, 2011. These condensed consolidated financial statements should
be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company s
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Consolidated Financial Statements for the three years ended December 31, 2010. GAAP policies which significantly
affect the determination of financial position, results of operations and cash flows, are summarized in Note 2.
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NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of consolidation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and all other
entities in which the Company has a controlling financial interest. All material intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company may be involved with certain entities that are considered to be variable interest entities ( VIEs ) as
defined under GAAP. In accordance with Consolidations Topic of the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB )
Accounting Standards Codification ( ASC ) 810, Consolidation, the Company determines whether it is the primary
beneficiary of each VIE. The criteria used in our determination include evaluating the contractual rights and

obligations associated with each party involved in the entity, calculating estimates of the entity s expected losses and
residual returns, and involvement in the power to direct activities most significant to the VIE. If the result of the
evaluation is the Company is determined to be the primary beneficiary, then the results of the VIE will be included in
the Company s consolidated financial statements.

Through November 2010 the Company was considered the primary beneficiary of two trusts that were deemed VIEs.
These two VIEs, the assets of which were classified as trading securities, were disposed of in December 2010.
Accordingly, as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company was not considered to be the primary
beneficiary of any VIEs and the Company did not have relationships with unconsolidated VIEs.

Accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosures of contingent assets and

liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the

reporting period. Those estimates are inherently subject to change and actual results could differ from those estimates.
Included among the material (or potentially material) reported amounts and disclosures that require extensive use of
estimates are: fair value of certain invested assets and derivatives including embedded derivatives,

other-than-temporary impairments, deferred acquisition costs ( DAC ), present value of in-force ( PVIF ), deferred sales
inducements ( DSI ), future policy benefits, other contractholder funds, income taxes and the potential effects of
resolving litigated matters.

Investment securities

At the time of purchase, the Company designates its investment securities as either available-for-sale ( AFS ) or trading
and reports them in the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value.

AFS consist of fixed maturity and equity securities and are stated at fair value with unrealized gains and losses

included within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ( AOCI ), net of associated DAC, PVIF, DSI, and
deferred income taxes.
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Trading securities consisted of fixed maturity and equity securities and money market investments in designated
portfolios. Trading securities were carried at fair value and changes in fair value were recorded in net investment gains
(losses) on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations as they occurred. The Company sold all trading
securities during 2010.

Securities held on deposit with various state regulatory authorities had a fair value of $18,215 and $13,474 at
March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.
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AFS securities  evaluation for recovery of amortized cost

The Company regularly reviews its AFS securities for declines in fair value that the Company determines to be
other-than-temporary. For an equity security, if the Company does not have the ability and intent to hold the security
for a sufficient period of time to allow for a recovery in value, the Company concludes that an other-than-temporary
impairment ( OTTI ) has occurred and the cost of the equity security is written down to the current fair value, with a
corresponding charge to realized loss on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations. When assessing the
Company s ability and intent to hold an equity security to recovery, the Company considers, among other things, the
severity and duration of the decline in fair value of the equity security as well as the cause of the decline, a
fundamental analysis of the liquidity, business prospects and the overall financial condition of the issuer.

For the Company s fixed maturity AFS securities, the Company generally considers the following in determining
whether the Company s unrealized losses are other than temporarily impaired:

The estimated range and period until recovery;

Current delinquencies and nonperforming assets of underlying collateral;

Expected future default rates;

Collateral value by vintage, geographic region, industry concentration or property type;

Subordination levels or other credit enhancements as of the balance sheet date as compared to origination; and
Contractual and regulatory cash obligations.

The Company recognizes other-than-temporary impairments on debt securities in an unrealized loss position when
one of the following circumstances exists:

The Company does not expect full recovery of its amortized cost based on the estimate of cash flows expected
to be collected,

The Company intends to sell a security or
It is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell a security prior to recovery.

If the Company intends to sell a debt security or it is more likely than not the Company will be required to sell the
security before recovery of its amortized cost basis and the fair value of the security is below amortized cost, the
Company will conclude that an OTTI has occurred and the amortized cost is written down to current fair value, with a
corresponding charge to realized loss on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations. If the Company does
not intend to sell a debt security or it is more likely than not the Company will not be required to sell a debt security
before recovery of its amortized cost basis and the present value of the cash flows expected to be collected is less than
the amortized cost of the security (referred to as the credit loss), an OTTI has occurred and the amortized cost is
written down to the estimated recovery value with a corresponding charge to realized loss on the Company s
Consolidated Statements of Operations, as this amount is deemed the credit loss portion of the OTTI. The remainder
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of the decline to fair value is recorded in AOCI as unrealized OTTI on AFS securities on the Company s Consolidated
Statements of Shareholder s Equity, as this amount is considered a noncredit (i.e., recoverable) impairment.

When assessing the Company s intent to sell a debt security or if it is more likely than not the Company will be
required to sell a debt security before recovery of its cost basis, the Company evaluates facts and circumstances such
as, but not limited to, decisions to reposition the Company s security portfolio, sale of securities to meet cash flow
needs and sales of securities to capitalize on favorable pricing. In order to determine the amount of the credit loss for a
security, the Company calculates the recovery value by
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) (Continued)

performing a discounted cash flow analysis based on the current cash flows and future cash flows the Company
expects to recover. The discount rate is the effective interest rate implicit in the underlying security. The effective
interest rate is the original yield or the yield at the date the debt security was previously impaired.

When evaluating mortgage-backed securities ( MBS ) and asset-backed securities ( ABS ) the Company considers a
number of pool-specific factors as well as market level factors when determining whether or not the impairment on
the security is temporary or other-than-temporary. The most important factor is the performance of the underlying
collateral in the security and the trends of that performance. The Company uses this information about the collateral to
forecast the timing and rate of mortgage loan defaults, including making projections for loans that are already
delinquent and for those loans that are currently performing but may become delinquent in the future. Other factors
used in this analysis include type of underlying collateral (e.g., prime, Alternative A-paper ( Alt-A ), or subprime),
geographic distribution of underlying loans and timing of liquidations by state. Once default rates and timing
assumptions are determined, the Company then makes assumptions regarding the severity of a default if it were to
occur. Factors that impact the severity assumption include expectations for future home price appreciation or
depreciation, loan size, first lien versus second lien, existence of loan level private mortgage insurance, type of
occupancy and geographic distribution of loans. Once default and severity assumptions are determined for the security
in question, cash flows for the underlying collateral are projected including expected defaults and prepayments. These
cash flows on the collateral are then translated to cash flows on the Company s tranche based on the cash flow
waterfall of the entire capital security structure. If this analysis indicates the entire principal on a particular security
will not be returned, the security is reviewed for OTTI by comparing the present value of expected cash flows to
amortized cost. To the extent that the security has already been impaired or was purchased at a discount, such that the
amortized cost of the security is less than or equal to the present value of cash flows expected to be collected, no
impairment is required. The Company also considers the ability of monoline insurers to meet their contractual
guarantees on wrapped MBS securities. Otherwise, if the amortized cost of the security is greater than the present
value of the cash flows expected to be collected, then impairment is recognized.

The Company includes on the face of the Consolidated Statements of Operations the total OTTI recognized in net
investment gains (losses), with an offset for the amount of noncredit impairments recognized in AOCI. The Company
discloses the amount of OTTI recognized in AOCI and other disclosures related to OTTI in Notes 3 and 9.

Fair value measurements

The Company s measurement of fair value is based on assumptions used by market participants in pricing the asset or
liability, which may include inherent risk, restrictions on the sale or use of an asset or non-performance risk, which
may include the Company s own credit risk. The Company s estimate of an exchange price is the price in an orderly
transaction between market participants to sell the asset or transfer the liability ( exit price ) in the principal market, or
the most advantageous market in the absence of a principal market, for that asset or liability, as opposed to the price
that would be paid to acquire the asset or receive a liability ( entry price ). The Company categorizes financial
instruments carried at fair value into a three-level fair value hierarchy, based on the priority of inputs to the respective
valuation technique. The three-level hierarchy for fair value measurement is defined as follows:

Level I  Values are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets accessible at the
measurement date.
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Level 2 Inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices from those willing
to trade in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by market data for the
term of the instrument. Such inputs include market interest rates and volatilities, spreads and yield curves.
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Level 3 Certain inputs are unobservable (supported by little or no market activity) and significant to the fair value
measurement. Unobservable inputs reflect the Company s best estimate of what hypothetical market participants would
use to determine a transaction price for the asset or liability at the reporting date based on the best information

available in the circumstances.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such
cases, an investment s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lower level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The Company s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the investment.

When a determination is made to classify an asset or liability within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the
determination is based upon the significance of the unobservable inputs to the overall fair value measurement.
Because certain securities trade in less liquid or illiquid markets with limited or no pricing information, the
determination of fair value for these securities is inherently more difficult. However, Level 3 fair value investments
may include, in addition to the unobservable or Level 3 inputs, observable components, which are components that are
actively quoted or can be validated to market-based sources.

Trading and AFS securities  fair valuation methodologies and associated inputs

The Company measures the fair value of its securities classified as trading and AFS based on assumptions used by
market participants in pricing the security. The most appropriate valuation methodology is selected based on the
specific characteristics of the fixed maturity or equity security, and the Company consistently applies the valuation
methodology to measure the security s fair value. The Company s fair value measurement is based on a market
approach, which utilizes prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or
comparable securities. Sources of inputs to the market approach include a third-party pricing service, independent
broker quotations or pricing matrices. The Company uses observable and unobservable inputs in its valuation
methodologies. Observable inputs include benchmark yields, reported trades, broker-dealer quotes, issuer spreads,
two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers and reference data. In addition, market indicators, industry and
economic events are monitored and further market data is acquired if certain triggers are met. For certain security
types, additional inputs may be used, or some of the inputs described above may not be applicable. For broker-quoted
only securities, quotes from market makers or broker-dealers are obtained from sources recognized to be market
participants. For those securities trading in less liquid or illiquid markets with limited or no pricing information, the
Company uses unobservable inputs in order to measure the fair value of these securities. This valuation relies on
management s judgment concerning the discount rate used in calculating expected future cash flows, credit quality,
industry sector performance and expected maturity.

The Company did not adjust prices received from third parties during the three months ended March 31, 2011 or 2010.
The Company does analyze the third-party pricing service s valuation methodologies and related inputs and performs
additional evaluations to determine the appropriate level within the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative instruments  fair valuation methodologies and associated inputs

The fair value of derivative assets and liabilities is based upon valuation pricing models and represents what the

Company would expect to receive or pay at the balance sheet date if the Company cancelled the options, entered into
offsetting positions, or exercised the options. The fair value of futures contracts at the balance sheet date represents the
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cumulative unsettled variation margin. Fair values for these instruments are determined externally by an independent
actuarial firm using market observable inputs, including interest rates, yield curve volatilities, and other factors. Credit
risk related to the counterparty is considered when
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estimating the fair values of these derivatives. However, the Company is largely protected by collateral arrangements
with counterparties.

The fair values of the embedded derivatives in the Company s Fixed Index Annuity ( FIA ) products are derived using
market indices, pricing assumptions and historical data.

Derivative instruments

The Company hedges certain portions of the Company s exposure to equity market risk by entering into derivative
transactions. All of the Company s derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities on the Company s
Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value. The change in fair value is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations within net investment gains (losses).

The Company purchases and issues financial instruments and products that may contain embedded derivative
instruments. If it is determined that the embedded derivative possesses economic characteristics that are not clearly
and closely related to the economic characteristics of the host contract, and a separate instrument with the same terms
would qualify as a derivative instrument, the embedded derivative is bifurcated from the host contract for
measurement purposes. The embedded derivative is carried at fair value with changes in fair value reported in the
Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost and include all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity
of three months or less.

DAC, PVIF and DSI

Commissions and other costs of acquiring annuities and other investment contracts, universal life ( UL ) insurance, and
traditional life insurance, that are related directly to the successful acquisition of new or renewal insurance contracts,
have been deferred to the extent recoverable. As discussed in the section Accounting for Costs Associated with
Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts of Note 2 herein, effective January 1, 2011 the Company adopted new
accounting guidance which modifies the definition of the types of costs incurred that can be capitalized in the
acquisition of new and renewal insurance contracts. PVIF is an intangible asset that reflects the estimated fair value of
in-force contracts in a life insurance company acquisition and represents the portion of the purchase price that is
allocated to the value of the right to receive future cash flows from the business in force at the acquisition date. Bonus
credits to policyholder account values are considered DSI, and the unamortized balance is reported in DAC on the
Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The methodology for determining the amortization of DAC, PVIF, and DSI varies by product type. For all insurance
contracts, amortization is based on assumptions consistent with those used in the development of the underlying
contract adjusted for emerging experience and expected trends. DAC, PVIF and DSI amortization are reported within
amortization of deferred acquisition costs and intangibles on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Acquisition costs for UL and investment-type products, which include fixed indexed and deferred annuities, are
generally amortized over the lives of the policies in relation to the incidence of estimated gross profits ( EGPs ) from
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investment income, surrender charges and other product fees, policy benefits, maintenance expenses, mortality net of
reinsurance ceded and expense margins, and actual realized gain (loss) on investments.

Acquisition costs for all traditional life insurance, which includes individual whole life and term life insurance
contracts, are amortized as a level percent of premium of the related policies. DAC for payout
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annuities is incorporated into the reserve balances on a net basis, thus amortizing the DAC over the life of the
contracts.

The carrying amounts of DAC, PVIF, and DSI are adjusted for the effects of realized and unrealized gains and losses
on debt securities classified as AFS and certain derivatives and embedded derivatives. Amortization expense of DAC,
PVIF, and DSI reflects an assumption for an expected level of credit-related investment losses. When actual
credit-related investment losses are realized, the Company performs a retrospective unlocking of DAC, PVIF and DSI
amortization as actual margins vary from expected margins. This unlocking is reflected in the Company s Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

For annuity, universal life insurance, and investment-type products, the DAC asset is adjusted for the impact of
unrealized gains (losses) on investments as if these gains (losses) had been realized, with corresponding credits or
charges included in AOCI as a shadow adjustment.

Each reporting period, the Company may record an adjustment to the amounts included within the Company s
Consolidated Balance Sheets for DAC, PVIF, and DSI with an offsetting benefit or charge to expense for the impact
of the difference between the future EGPs used in the prior period and the emergence of actual and updated future
EGPs in the current period. In addition, annually, the Company conducts a comprehensive review of the assumptions
and the projection models used for the Company s estimates of future gross profits underlying the amortization of
DAC, PVIF, and DSI and the calculations of the embedded derivatives and reserves for certain annuity and life
insurance products. These assumptions include investment margins, mortality, persistency and maintenance expenses
(costs associated with maintaining records relating to insurance and annuity contracts and with the processing of
premium collections, deposits, withdrawals and commissions). Based on the Company s review, the cumulative
balance of DAC included on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets are adjusted with an offsetting benefit or
charge to amortization expense to reflect such change.

DAC, PVIF, and DSI are reviewed periodically to ensure that the unamortized portion does not exceed the expected
recoverable amounts.

Reinsurance

The Company s insurance companies enter into reinsurance agreements with other companies in the normal course of
business. The assets, liabilities, premiums and benefits of certain reinsurance contracts are presented on a net basis on
the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Operations, respectively, when there is a
right of offset explicit in the reinsurance agreements. All other reinsurance agreements are reported on a gross basis on
the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets as an asset for amounts recoverable from reinsurers or as a component of
other liabilities for amounts, such as premiums, owed to the reinsurers, with the exception of amounts for which the
right of offset also exists. Premiums, benefits and DAC are reported net of insurance ceded.

Future policy benefits and other contractholder funds
The liabilities for future policy benefits and contractholder funds for investment contracts and UL insurance policies
consist of contract account balances that accrue to the benefit of the contractholders, excluding surrender charges. The

liabilities for future insurance contract benefits and claim reserves for traditional life policies are computed using
assumptions for investment yields, mortality and withdrawals based principally on generally accepted actuarial
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methods and assumptions at the time of contract issue.

Liabilities for the secondary guarantees on UL-type products are calculated by multiplying the benefit ratio by the
cumulative assessments recorded from contract inception through the balance sheet date less the cumulative secondary
guarantee benefit payments plus interest. If experience or assumption changes result in a new benefit ratio, the
reserves are adjusted to reflect the changes in a manner similar to the unlocking of

F-352

Table of Contents 42



Edgar Filing: Townsend Christopher G - Form 4

Table of Contents
FIDELITY & GUARANTY LIFE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) (Continued)

DAC, PVIF and DSI. The accounting for secondary guarantee benefits impacts, and is impacted by, EGPs used to
calculate amortization of DAC, PVIF and DSI.

Fixed indexed annuities are equal to the total of the policyholder account values before surrender charges, and
additional reserves established on certain features offered that link interest credited to an equity index. These features
are not clearly and closely related to the host insurance contract, and therefore they are recorded at fair value as an
additional reserve.

Insurance premiums

The Company s insurance premiums for traditional life insurance products are recognized as revenue when due from
the contractholder. The Company s traditional life insurance products include those products with fixed and guaranteed
premiums and benefits and consist primarily of term life insurance and certain annuities with life contingencies.

Net investment income

Dividends and interest income, recorded in net investment income, are recognized when earned. Amortization of
premiums and accretion of discounts on investments in fixed maturity securities are reflected in net investment
income over the contractual terms of the investments in a manner that produces a constant effective yield.

For MBS, included in the trading and AFS fixed maturity securities portfolios, the Company recognizes income using
a constant effective yield based on anticipated prepayments and the estimated economic life of the securities. When
actual prepayments differ significantly from originally anticipated prepayments, the effective yield is recalculated
prospectively to reflect actual payments to date plus anticipated future payments. Any adjustments resulting from
changes in effective yield are reflected in net investment income on the Company s Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Net investment gains (losses)

Net investment gains (losses) on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations include realized gains and
losses from the sale of investments, write-downs for other-than-temporary impairments of available-for-sale
investments, derivative and certain embedded derivative gains and losses, and gains and losses on trading securities.
Realized gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the specific identification method.
Product fees

Revenue from nontraditional life insurance products and deferred annuities is comprised of policy and contract fees
charged for the cost of insurance, policy administration and surrenders and is assessed on a monthly basis and
recognized as revenue when assessed and earned.

Benefits

Benefits for fixed and fixed indexed annuities and UL include benefit claims incurred during the period in excess of

contract account balances. Benefits also include the change in reserves for life insurance products with secondary
guarantee benefits. For traditional life, benefits are recognized when incurred in a manner consistent with the related
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Income taxes

The Company and its non-life subsidiaries file separate federal income tax returns. The Company s life subsidiaries file
a consolidated life federal return. Deferred income taxes are recognized, based on enacted rates, when assets and
liabilities have different values for financial statement and tax reporting purposes. A valuation allowance is recorded

to the extent required to reduce the deferred tax asset to an amount that the Company expects, more likely than not,

will be realized.

Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta agreements

Contractholder funds include funds related to funding agreements that have been issued to the Federal Home Loan
Bank of Atlanta ( FHLB ) as a funding medium for single premium funding agreements issued by the Company to the
FHLB.

Funding agreements were issued to the FHLB in 2003, 2004 and 2005. The funding agreements (i.e., immediate
annuity contracts without life contingencies) provide a guaranteed stream of payments. Single premiums were
received at the initiation of the funding agreements and were in the form of advances from the FHLB. Payments under
the funding agreements extend through 2022. The reserves for the funding agreement totaled $159,279 and $159,702
at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

In accordance with the agreements, the investments supporting the funding agreement liabilities are pledged as
collateral to secure the FHLB funding agreement liabilities. The FHLB investments had a fair value of $214,237 and
$231,391 at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.

New Accounting Standards
Consolidations Topic

In June 2009, the FASB amended the Consolidations Topic for improvements to financial reporting by entities

involved with Variable Interest Entities ( VIEs ) (  ASU 2009-17 ). Primarily, the current quantitative analysis used under
the Consolidations Topic of the FASB ASC was eliminated and replaced with a qualitative approach that is focused

on identifying the variable interest that has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the

performance of the VIE and absorb losses or receive returns that could potentially be significant to the VIE. In

addition, this new accounting standard requires an ongoing reassessment of the primary beneficiary of the VIE, rather

than reassessing the primary beneficiary only upon the occurrence of certain pre-defined events. The Company

adopted these amendments effective January 1, 2010. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on

our consolidated financial statements.

Derivatives and Hedging Topic

In July 2010, the FASB amended the Derivatives and Hedging Topic of the FASB ASC to clarify the type of
embedded credit derivative that is exempt from bifurcation ( ASU 2010-11 ). This guidance clarifies the scope
exception for embedded credit derivatives and requires that the only form of embedded credit derivatives that qualify
for the exemption are credit derivatives related to the subordination of one financial instrument to another. Further, for
securities no longer exempt under the new guidance, entities may continue to forgo bifurcating the embedded
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derivatives if they elect, on an instrument-by-instrument basis, and report the security at fair value with changes in fair
value reported through the consolidated statement of operations. The Company adopted the accounting guidance in
ASU 2010-11 effective January 1, 2010. The adoption of this guidance did not have an impact on our consolidated
financial statements.
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Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic

In January 2010, the FASB amended the Fair Value Measurement and Disclosures Topic of the FASB ASC to expand
the disclosure requirements related to fair value measurements ( ASU 2010-06 ). A reporting entity is now required to
disclose separately the amounts of significant transfers into and out of Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
and describe the reasons for the transfers. Further, a separate presentation of purchases, sales, issuances, and
settlements within the rollforward of Level 3 activity is required. Clarification on existing disclosure requirements is
also provided in this update relating to the level of disaggregation of information in determining appropriate classes of
assets and liabilities as well as disclosure requirements regarding valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair
value for both recurring and nonrecurring fair value measurements. The Company adopted the guidance issued by the
FASB effective January 1, 2010, except for the disclosures about purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements in the
rollforward of activity in Level 3 fair value measurements which were adopted effective January 1, 2011. The
adoption of new guidance resulted in expanded disclosures within Note 5. Other than the expansion of disclosures, the
adoption of this guidance did not have any impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts

In October 2010, as a result of a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force, the FASB issued ASU

No. 2010-26, Financial Services-Insurance (Topic 944): Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or
Renewing Insurance Contracts ( ASU 2010-26 ), which modifies the definition of the types of costs incurred that can be
capitalized in the acquisition of new and renewal insurance contracts. This guidance defines allowable deferred
acquisition costs as the incremental direct cost of contract acquisition and certain costs related directly to
underwriting, policy issuance, and processing. ASU 2010-26 is effective for fiscal years and for interim periods within
those fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011, with early application permitted. The guidance could be applied
prospectively or retrospectively. The Company early adopted this standard on a prospective basis effective January 1,
2011. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements. For the
three months ended March 31, 2011, the Company s capitalized acquisition costs were $799 lower than if the
Company s previous policy had been applied during that period.

NOTE 3: INVESTMENTS
AFS Securities

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains (losses), and fair value of AFS securities were as follows:

As of March 31, 2011
Gross Unrealized
Amortized Gains Gross Unrealized Losses
Cost Not OTTI OTTI Not OTTI OTTI Fair Value

AFS Securities

ABS $ 520,331 $ 20,308 $ $ 687) $ $ 539,952
CMBS 612,463 29,523 1,600 (10,266) 633,320
Corporates 11,177,308 515,391 (149,091) 11,543,608

Table of Contents 47



Equities

Hybrids
Municipals
RMBS

U.S. Government

Total AFS securities
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309,234
734,964
701,853
900,292
217,986

$ 15,174,431

1,864 (14,897)
11,788 (42,436)
14,349 (7,629)
16,694 1,561 (19,147)

3,479 (394)

$ 613,396 $ 3,161 $ (244,547)

F-355

296,201
704,316
708,573
(24,931) 874,469
221,071

$ (24931) §$ 15,521,510
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As of December 31, 2010
Gross Unrealized
Amortized Gains Gross Unrealized Losses
Cost Not OTTI OTTI Not OTTI OTTI Fair Value

AFS Securities

ABS $ 508,396 $ 13,791 $ $ (2,062) $ $ 520,125
CMBS 731,065 25,669 2,821 (12,218) 747,337
Corporates 11,303,332 519,733 (173,018) 11,650,047
Equities 309,874 1,612 (18,709) 292,777
Hybrids 821,333 11,726 (60,253) 772,806
Municipals 542,874 8,429 (7,929) 543,374
RMBS 941,460 15,540 1,343 (26,470) (30,702) 901,171
U.S. Government 222,461 4,306 (150) 226,617

Total AFS securities $ 15,380,795 $ 600,806 $ 4,164 $ (300,809) $ (30,702) $ 15,654,254

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturity AFS securities by contractual maturities were as follows:

As of March 31, 2011
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Due in one year or less $ 262,699 $ 267,655
Due after one year through five years 2,445,506 2,545,341
Due after five years through ten years 4,583,509 4,765,273
Due after ten years 4,805,433 4,894,983
Subtotal 12,097,147 12,473,252
ABS 520,331 539,952
CMBS 612,463 633,320
Hybrids 734,964 704,316
RMBS 900,292 874,469
Total fixed maturity AFS securities $ 14,865,197 $ 15,225,309

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to call or pre-pay
obligations.
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As part of the Company s ongoing securities monitoring process by a committee of investment and accounting
professionals, the Company identifies securities in an unrealized loss position that could potentially be
other-than-temporarily impaired. See Note 2 for the Company s accounting policy for other than temporarily impaired
investment assets. Due to the issuers continued satisfaction of the securities obligations in accordance with their
contractual terms and the expectation that they will continue to do so, and for loan-backed and structured securities the
present value of cash flows expected to be collected is at least the amount of the amortized cost basis of the security,
management s lack of intent to sell these securities for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery
in fair value, and the evaluation that it is more likely than not that the Company will not be required to sell these
securities prior to recovery, as well as the evaluation of the fundamentals of the issuers financial condition and other
objective evidence, the Company believes that the fair values of the securities in the sectors identified in the tables
below were temporarily depressed as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010.

F-356

Table of Contents 50



Edgar Filing: Townsend Christopher G - Form 4

Table of Contents
FIDELITY & GUARANTY LIFE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) (Continued)
The fair value and gross unrealized losses, including the portion of OTTI recognized in AOCI, of AFS securities,

aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized
loss position, were as follows:

As of March 31, 2011
Less Than or Equal Greater Than
to Twelve Months Twelve Months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
AFS Securities
ABS $ 19,906 $ (160) $ 12,828 $ 527 % 32,734 $ (687)
CMBS 40,030 (5,877) 63,397 (4,389) 103,427 (10,266)
Corporates 2,275,212 (70,437) 963,815 (78,654) 3,239,027 (149,091)
Equities 102,077 (5,964) 100,755 (8,933) 202,832 (14,897)
Hybrids 62,089 (2,558) 405,488 (39,878) 467,577 (42,436)
Municipals 313,796 (7,108) 4,615 (521) 318,411 (7,629)
RMBS 196,565 (16,490) 173,902 (27,588) 370,467 (44,078)
U.S. Government 9,027 (394) 9,027 (394)

Total AFS securities $ 3,018,702 $ (108,988) $ 1,724,800 $ (160,490) $ 4,743,502 $ (269.478)

Total number of AFS securities in an unrealized loss position 475
As of December 31, 2010
Less Than or Equal Greater Than
to Twelve Months Twelve Months Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

AFS Securities

ABS $ 87,898 $ 916) $ 13,205 $ (1,146) $ 101,103 $ (2,062)
CMBS 89,222 (3,860) 127,245 (8,358) 216,467 (12,218)
Corporates 2,311,822 (74,872) 1,087,277 (98,146) 3,399,099 (173,018)
Equities 114,000 (7,039) 98,020 (11,670) 212,020 (18,709)
Hybrids 123,090 (3,943) 401,757 (56,310) 524,847 (60,253)
Municipals 240,546 (7,363) 4,651 (566) 245,197 (7,929)
RMBS 210,558 (24,872) 259,300 (32,300) 469,858 (57,172)
U.S. Government 9,273 (150) 9,273 (150)
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Total AFS securities $ 3,186,409 $ (123,015) $ 1,991,455 $ (208,496) $ 5,177,864 $ (331,511)

Total number of AFS securities in an unrealized loss position 511

At March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, securities in an unrealized loss position were primarily concentrated in
investment grade corporate debt instruments and structured/hybrid securities, including residential mortgage-backed
securities ( RMBS ), commercial mortgage-backed securities ( CMBS ) and financial services sector securities. Total
unrealized losses decreased by $62,033 between December 31, 2010 and March 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily
due to credit spread tightening as global credit markets recovered as well as investment losses realized on security

sales and impairments.
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At March 31, 2011, for securities with unrealized losses, securities representing 97% of the carrying values were
depressed less than 20% of amortized cost. Based upon the Company s current evaluation of these securities in
accordance with its impairment policy and the Company s intent to retain these investments for a period of time
sufficient to allow for recovery in value, the Company has determined that these securities are temporarily impaired.

The majority of the securities depressed over 20% for six consecutive months or greater in the tables above relate to
financial service sector securities. Financial services sector securities include corporate bonds, as well as preferred
equity issued by large financial institutions that are lower in the capital structure and, as a result, have incurred greater
price depressions. Based upon the Company s analysis of these securities and current macroeconomic conditions, the
Company expects these securities to pay in accordance with their contractual obligations and, therefore, has
determined that these securities are temporarily impaired as of March 31, 2011. Structured securities primarily are
RMBS issues, including sub-prime and Alt-A mortgage loans and CMBS securities. Based upon the Company s ability
and intent to retain the securities until recovery and cash flow modeling results, which demonstrate recovery of
amortized cost, the Company has determined that these securities are temporarily impaired as of March 31, 2011.
Certain structured securities were deemed to be other than temporarily impaired, which resulted in the recognition of
credit losses. Certain securities with previous credit impairment losses continue to be in an unrealized loss position at
March 31, 2011 as the securities were not written down to fair value due to the Company s intent to hold these
securities until recovery and cash flow modeling results support recovery of the current amortized cost of the
securities.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the credit loss portion of other
than temporary impairments on fixed maturity securities held by the Company as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 for
which a portion of the OTTI was recognized in AOCI:

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,

2011 2010
Beginning balance $ 73,393 $ 129,167
Increases attributable to credit losses on securities for which an OTTI was not
previously recognized 1,594
Reductions for securities sold during the period (4,335) (42,887)
Ending balance $ 69,058 $ 87,874

For the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized losses totaling $2,939 and $8,905,
respectively, related to fixed maturity securities and equity securities which experienced other than temporary
impairments and had an amortized cost of $3,125 and $31,464 and a fair value of $186 and $22,559, respectively, at
the time of impairment. The Company recognized impairments on these fixed maturity securities and equity securities
due to declines in the financial condition and short term prospects of the issuers.
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Net Investment Income

The major categories of net investment income on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations were as
follows:

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,
2011 2010
Fixed maturity AFS securities $ 214,587 $ 223,114
Equity AFS securities 4,260 5,192
Trading securities 1,312
Policy loans 1,524 1,515
Invested cash & short-term investments 90 23
Other investments 534 583
Gross investment income 220,995 231,739
Investment expense (3,850) (3,803)
Net investment income $ 217,145 $ 227,936

Net Investment Gains (Losses)

Details underlying net investment gains (losses) reported on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations
were as follows:

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,
2011 2010
Realized gains on fixed maturity AFS securities $ 17,419 $ 58,580
Realized gains (losses) on equity securities 1,753 (325)
Realized gains on certain derivative instruments 19,565 53,521
Unrealized gains on trading securities 1,278
Unrealized gains (losses) on certain derivative instruments 45,748 (5,953)
Net investment gains $ 84,485 $ 107,101

Proceeds from the sale of fixed maturity securities totaled $408,850 and $591,575 in the first three months of 2011
and 2010. Gross gains on the sale of fixed maturity securities totaled $25,475 and $64,090 in the first three months of
2011 and 2010; gross losses totaled $7,662 and $2,437 in the first three months of 2011 and 2010.
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Details underlying write-downs taken as a result of OTTI that was recognized in net income and included in realized
gains on AFS securities above were as follows:

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,
2011 2010

OTTI recognized in net income

CMBS $ (2,695) $ (4,089)
RMBS 2) (1,674)
Other assets (242)

Total $ (2,939) $ (5,763)

F-359
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The portion of OTTI recognized in Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI ) is disclosed in Note 9.
Concentrations of Financial Instruments

As of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company s most significant investment in one issuer was the
Company s investment in securities issued by Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage with a fair value of $175,530 and
$172,379 or 1.1% of the Company s invested assets, respectively. As of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the
Company s most significant investment in one industry was the Company s investment securities in the banking
industry with a fair value of $2,035,455 and $2,078,728, or 13% of the invested assets portfolio, respectively. The
Company utilized the industry classifications to obtain the concentration of financial instruments amount; as such, this
amount will not agree to the AFS securities table above.

NOTE 4: DERIVATIVES

The Company recognizes all derivative instruments as assets or liabilities in its Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair
value. None of the Company s derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, thus, any changes in the fair value of the
derivatives is recognized immediately in the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations. The fair value of
derivative instruments, including derivative instruments embedded in FIA contracts, presented in the Company s
Consolidated Balance Sheets are as follows:

As of As of
March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Assets:

Derivative investments:

Call options $ 208,527 $ 161,468

Other assets:

Futures contracts 1,681 2,309
$ 210,208 $ 163,777

Liabilities:

Contractholder funds:

FIA embedded derivative $ 1,493,868 $ 1,462,592

Other liabilities:

AFS embedded derivative 419 432
$ 1,494,287 $ 1,463,024

F-360
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The change in fair value of derivative instruments included in the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations is
as follows:

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,
2011 2010
Revenues:
Net investment gains:
Call options $ 54,151 $ 36,694
Futures contracts 11,162 10,874
65,313 47,568
Net investment income:
AFS embedded derivatives 13 1,847

$ 65,326 $ 49415

Benefits and other changes in policy reserves:
FIA embedded derivatives $ 31,276 $ 55,553

The Company has FIA contracts that permit the holder to elect an interest rate return or an equity market component,
where interest credited to the contracts is linked to the performance of various equity indices such as the S&P 500,

Dow Jones Industrials or the NASDAQ 100 Index. This feature represents an embedded derivative under the
Derivatives and Hedging Topic of the FASB ASC. The FIA embedded derivative is valued at fair value and included

in the liability for contractholder funds on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets with changes in fair value
included as a component of benefits and other changes in policy reserves in the Company s Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

When FIA deposits are received, a portion of the deposit is used to purchase derivatives consisting of a combination
of call options and futures contracts on the applicable market indices to fund the index credits due to FIA
contractholders. The majority of all such call options are one year options purchased to match the funding
requirements of the underlying policies. On the respective anniversary dates of the index policies, the index used to
compute the annual index credit is reset and the Company purchases new one, two or three year call options to fund
the next index credit. The Company manages the cost of these purchases through the terms of its FIA contracts, which
permit the Company to change caps or participation rates, subject to guaranteed minimums on each contract s
anniversary date. The change in the fair value of the call options and futures contracts is designed to offset the change
in the fair value of the FIA embedded derivative. The call options and futures contracts are marked to fair value with
the change in fair value included as a component of net investment gains (losses). The change in fair value of the call
options and futures contracts includes the gains and losses recognized at the expiration of the instrument term or upon
early termination and the changes in fair value of open positions.

Other market exposures are hedged periodically depending on market conditions and the Company s risk tolerance.
The Company s FIA hedging strategy economically hedges the equity returns and exposes the Company to the risk that
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unhedged market exposures result in divergence between changes in the fair value of the liabilities and the hedging
assets. The Company uses a variety of techniques including direct estimation of market sensitivities and value-at-risk
to monitor this risk daily. The Company intends to continue to adjust the hedging strategy as market conditions and
the Company s risk tolerance change.

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by its counterparties on the call options and
reflects assumptions regarding this nonperformance risk in the fair value of the call options. The nonperformance risk
is the net counterparty exposure based on the fair value of the open contracts less collateral held. The credit risk
associated with such agreements is minimized by purchasing such agreements
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from financial institutions with ratings above A3 from Moody s Investor Services or A— from Standard and Poor s
Corporation. Additionally, the Company maintains a policy of requiring all derivative contracts to be governed by an

International Swaps and Derivatives Association ( ISDA ) Master Agreement.

Information regarding the Company s exposure to credit loss on the call options it holds is presented in the following
table:

March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Credit Notional Fair Collateral Notional Fair Collateral
Counterparty Rating Amount Value Held Amount Value Held
Barclay s Bank Aa3 $ 203,113 $ 9,040 $ $ 172,190 $ 5827 $
Credit Suisse Aal 154,500 4,093 88,500 1,566
Bank of America A2 1,491,216 68,848 28,746 1,568,602 53,993
Deutsche Bank Aa3 1,527,765 62,867 31,000 1,624,756 50,286 21,299
Morgan Stanley A2 1,779,408 63,679 39,385 1,654,620 49,796 25,924

$ 5,156,002 $ 208,527 § 99,131 $ 5,108,668 $ 161,468 $ 47,223

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents received from counterparties for call option collateral, which is
included in other liabilities on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets. This call option collateral limits the
maximum amount of loss due to credit risk that the Company would incur if parties to the call options failed
completely to perform according to the terms of the contracts to $109,396 and $114,245 at March 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010, respectively.

The Company is required to maintain minimum ratings as a matter of routine practice in its ISDA agreements. Under
some ISDA agreements, the Company has agreed to maintain certain financial strength ratings. A downgrade below
these levels could result in termination of the open derivative contracts between the parties, at which time any
amounts payable by the Company or the counterparty would be dependent on the market value of the underlying
derivative contracts. Downgrades of the Company have given multiple counterparties the right to terminate ISDA
agreements. No ISDA agreements have been terminated, although the counterparties have reserved the right to
terminate the ISDA agreements at any time. In certain transactions, the Company and the counterparty have entered
into a collateral support agreement requiring either party to post collateral when the net exposures exceed
pre-determined thresholds. These thresholds vary by counterparty and credit rating. Downgrades of the Company s
ratings have increased the threshold amount in the Company s collateral support agreements, reducing the amount of
collateral held and increasing the credit risk to which the Company is exposed.

The Company held 1,996 and 2,915 futures contracts at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively. The
fair value of futures contracts represents the cumulative unsettled variation margin. The Company provides cash
collateral to the counterparties for the initial and variation margin on the futures contracts which is included in cash
and cash equivalents in the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amount of collateral held by the
counterparties for such contracts at March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 was $9,069 and $12,925, respectively.
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As of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company owned one debt security that contained a credit default
swap. This embedded derivative has been bifurcated from its host contract, marked to fair value and included in other
liabilities on the Company s Consolidated Balance Sheets with the change in fair value included as a component of net
investment income on the Company s Consolidated Statements of Operations. This credit default swap allows the
investor to put back to the Company a portion of the security s par value upon the occurrence of a default event by the
bond issuer. A default event is defined as a bankruptcy, failure to pay, obligation acceleration, or restructuring.

Similar to other debt instruments, the Company s maximum principal loss is limited to the original investment of $959
and $989 at March 31, 2011 and December 31,
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2010, respectively. As of March 31, 2010 the Company owned four debt securities that contained a credit default
swap. Three of these securities were sold subsequent to March 31, 2010. The change in fair value for these four
securities was included as a component of net investment income on the Company s Consolidated Statements of
Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2010.

NOTE 5: FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company s financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value have been classified, for disclosure purposes, based
on a hierarchy defined by FASB ASC Topic 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures . The hierarchy gives the
highest ranking to fair values determined using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest ranking to fair values determined using methodologies and models with
unobservable inputs (Level 3). An asset s or a liability s classification is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to its measurement. For example, a Level 3 fair value measurement may include inputs that are both
observable (Levels 1 and 2) and unobservable (Level 3). The three-level hierarchy for fair value measurement is
defined in Note 2. The following table provides information as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010 about the
Company s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

As of March 31, 2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale
Corporates $ $ 11,358,439 $ 185,169 $ 11,543,608
RMBS 853,912 20,557 874,469
CMBS 633,161 159 633,320
Hybrids 696,010 8,306 704,316
ABS 139,985 399,967 539,952
U.S. Government 221,071 221,071
Municipal 708,512 61 708,573
Equity securities available-for-sale 296,201 296,201
Derivative instruments- call options 208,527 208,527
Other assets futures contracts 1,681 1,681
Total assets at fair value $ 221,071 $ 14,896,428 $ 614,219 $ 15,731,718
Liabilities
FIA embedded derivatives $ $ $ 1,493,868 $ 1,493,868
AFS embedded derivatives 419 419
Total liabilities at fair value $ $ $ 1,494,287 $ 1,494,287
F-363

Table of Contents 61



Edgar Filing: Townsend Christopher G - Form 4

Table of Contents

FIDELITY & GUARANTY LIFE HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED)

As of December 31, 2010 Level 1

Assets

Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale
Corporates $
RMBS

CMBS

Hybrids

ABS

U.S. Government 226,617
Municipal

Equity securities available-for-sale

Derivative instruments- call options

Other assets  futures contracts

Total assets at fair value $ 226,617
Liabilities
FIA embedded derivatives $

AFS embedded derivatives

Total liabilities at fair value $

Level 2

$ 11,452,989
880,495
747,154
764,772
164,318

543,374
292,777
161,468

2,309

$ 15,009,656

(Continued)

Level 3 Total
$ 197,058 $ 11,650,047
20,676 901,171
183 747,337
8,034 772,806
355,807 520,125
226,617
543,374
292,777
161,468
2,309
$ 581,758 $ 15,818,031
$ 1,462,592 $ 1,462,592
432 432
$ 1,463,024 $ 1,463,024

The following tables summarize changes to the Company s financial instruments carried at fair value and classified

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the periods presented. This summary excludes any impact of

amortization of DAC, PVIF, and DSI. The gains and losses below may include changes in fair value due in part to
observable inputs that are a component of the valuation methodology.

Balance at Net
Beginning Total Realized and Purchases,
Unrealized Gains
of Period (Losses) Sales,
Included Issuances
For the Three Months January 1, in Included &
Net
Ended March 31, 2011 2011 Income in OCI Settlements
Assets
Fixed maturity securities
available-for-sale:
Corporates $ 197,058 $ 404 $ (6,641) $ (5,666)
RMBS 20,676 1,034 (1,153)
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(Out)
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$ 14

Balance at

End of

Period

March 31,

$

2011

185,169
20,557
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CMBS
Hybrids
ABS
Municipals

Total assets at fair value
Liabilities
Fixed indexed annuities

AFS embedded derivatives

Total liabilities at fair value
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183
8,034
355,807

$ 581,758

$ 1,462,592

432

$ 1,463,024

9,700

$ 10,104

$ 31,276

(13)

$ 31,263
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24)
272
11,857

6,498

$

22,603

15,784

$

61

75

159
8,306
399,967
61

$ 614,219
$ 1,493,868
419

$ 1,494,287
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Balance at Net Balance
Beginning Total Realized and Purchases, Net at End of
Unrealized Gains Transfer
of Period (Losses) Sales, in Period
Included Issuances
For the Three Months January 1, in Included & (Out) of March 31,
Net
Ended March 31, 2010 2010 Income in OCI Settlements Level 3(a) 2010
Assets
Fixed maturity securities
available-for-sale:
Corporates $ 302,064 $ 6383 $ 1588 $ (14,683) $ 23,146 $ 318,498
RMBS 4,384 18,237 22,621
CMBS 20,701 1,000 (3,313) 370 18,758
Hybrids 10,996 9,564 20,560
ABS 324,057 4,774 5,617 9,176 343,624
Equity securities
available-for-sale 6,694 (6,694)

Total assets at fair value $ 668,896 $ 6383 $ 7362 $ (12,379) $ 53,799 $ 724,061

Liabilities

Fixed indexed annuities $ 1,420,352 $ 55,553 % $ $ $ 1,475,905
AFS embedded derivatives 13,770 (1,847) 11,923
Total liabilities at fair value $ 1,434,122 $ 53,706 $ $ $ $ 1,487,828

(a) The net transfers in and out of Level 3 in 2011 and 2010 were exclusively to or from Level 2.

The following table presents the gross components of purchases, sales, and settlements, net, of Level 3 financial
instruments for the three months ended March 31, 2011. There were no issuances during this period.

Net Purchases,

Sales,
Issuances
Purchases Sales Settlements & Settlements
Assets
Fixed maturity securities available-for-sale:
Corporates $ $ (B,666) $ $ (5,666)
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RMBS (1,153) (1,153)
ABS 50,549 (17,544) (10,402) 22,603
Total assets $ 50,549 $ (23,2100 $ (11,555 $ 15,784

Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value include accrued investment income, due to affiliates, due from
affiliates, and portions of other liabilities. The fair values of these financial instruments approximate their carrying
values due to their short duration. Financial instruments not carried at fair value also include investment contracts
which are comprised of deferred annuities, FIAs and immediate annuities. The Company estimates the fair values of
investment contracts based on expected future cash flows, discounted at their current market rates. The carrying value
of investment contracts was $12,394,800 and $12,563,045 as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively.
The fair value of investment contracts was $11,014,154 and $11,027,282 as of March 31, 2011 and December 31,
2010, respectively.

The fair value of the Company s fixed and fixed indexed annuity contracts is based on their approximate account
values.

The fair value of the Company s $248,505 note payable to affiliate approximates its book value.
F-365
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NOTE 6: TRANSACTIONS WITH AFFILIATES

Certain of the Company s investments were managed by various affiliated companies of OM. These agreements were
terminated late in 2010. Fees incurred in connection with these services (excluding any overall intercompany
allocations) totaled approximately $1,441 for the three months ended March 31, 2010 (prior to termination of the
agreements).

The Company held five long-term notes from affiliated companies of OM as of December 31, 2010 which were
classified as Notes receivable from affiliates including accrued interest on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These
notes had an actual cost totaling $76,000 with interest rates ranging from 5.95% to 8.30%

These long-term notes were repaid in full on March 31, 2011, when the Company received cash equal to the
outstanding principal balance of $76,000 plus accrued interest of $1,541. During the three months ended March 31,

2010 the Company received an interest payment of $694 on these long-term notes.

These long-term notes were comprised of the following:

December 31, 2010
Accrued
Interest
Interest at 12/31/10
Acquired Maturity

Actual Cost Rate 12/31/10 Date Date Receivable
$30,000 5.9% $ 4 12/15/2005 12/31/2013 $ 30,004
10,000 6.1% 2 12/18/2006 12/17/2014 10,002
10,000 8.3% 2 12/22/2008 12/31/2015 10,002
10,000 7.0% 2 12/18/2009 12/31/2016 10,002
16,000 7.0% 247 9/25/2006 9/25/2014 16,247
$76,000 $ 257 $ 76,257

The Company has certain outstanding long-term notes which were due to the former parent, OMGUK, which are
classified as Notes payable to affiliate, including accrued interest on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. OMGUK
assigned its interest in these notes to Harbinger F&G in connection with the sale of the Company. See Note 11. The
components were as follows:

March 31, December 31,

2011 2010
Term note principal $ 225,000 $ 225,000
Term note accrued interest 2,048 19,584
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Credit facility principal 21,296
Credit facility accrued interest 161
Total payable $ 248,505 $ 244 584

On February 25, 2009, the Company borrowed $225,000 under a term loan agreement with OMGUK which bears
interest at 10.24%, payable annually on February 28. The term loan is due on February 28, 2014.

Also on February 25, 2009, the Company entered into a $100,000 revolving credit facility with OMGUK under which
borrowings bear interest at the three month LIBOR plus 8.18% and are due on February 28, 2014. During February
2011 and 2010 the Company borrowed $21,296 and $23,616, respectively, against this revolving credit facility to pay
interest on the term loan. As of March 31, 2011, the $21,296 borrowing remained outstanding. In December 2010 the
Company repaid the February 2010 revolving credit facility borrowing in full with a total payment of $25,275
($23,616 of principal and $1,659 in accrued interest).
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Accordingly, as of December 31, 2010, there were no outstanding borrowings under this revolving credit facility.
NOTE 7: OTHER LIABILITIES
The components of other liabilities were as follows:

As of As of
March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Call options collateral held $ 99,131 $ 47,223
Retained asset account 196,557 191,065
Deferred reinsurance revenue 39,972 43,577
Derivative financial instruments liabilities 419 432
Other 155,490 109,542
Total Other liabilities $ 491,569 $ 391,839

NOTE 8: INCOME TAXES

The effective tax rate is a ratio of tax expense over pre-tax income (loss). The effective tax rate was (165.7)% and
(353.6)% for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The effective tax rate on pre-tax income
(loss) from operations was different than the prevailing corporate federal income tax rate. Differences in the effective
rate and the U.S. statutory rate of 35% were mainly the result of a reduction in the valuation allowance.

The application of GAAP requires the Company to evaluate the recoverability of its deferred tax assets and establish a
valuation allowance if necessary, to reduce the Company s deferred tax asset to an amount that is more likely than not
to be realizable. Considerable judgment and the use of estimates are required in determining whether a valuation
allowance is necessary, and if so, the amount of such valuation allowance. In evaluating the need for a valuation
allowance, the Company considers many factors, including: the nature and character of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities; taxable income in prior carryback years; future reversals of temporary differences; the length of time
carryovers can be utilized; and any tax planning strategies the Company would employ to avoid a tax benefit from
expiring unused.

As of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company does not believe that it is more likely than not that its
capital losses, capital related investment deferred tax assets, and certain net operating losses will be fully utilized.
Accordingly, valuation allowances of $76,255 and $87,068 as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010,
respectively, were set up against those deferred tax assets. A change in the valuation allowance of $(750) and
$(43,137) was recorded as a component of other comprehensive income in shareholder s equity and $(10,063) and
$(81,483) was recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and
2010, respectively, to record the change in the estimated recoverable deferred tax asset. Certain tax attributes will
become annually limited in terms of realization as a consequence of the acquisition of the Company by Harbinger
F&G from OMGUK. See Note 11.
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Net unrealized gains and losses on investment securities classified as AFS are reduced by deferred income taxes and
adjustments to DAC, PVIF and DSI that would have resulted had such gains and losses been
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realized. Net unrealized gains and losses on AFS investment securities reflected as a separate component of
accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows as of March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010:

As of As of

March 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Net unrealized investment gains, net of tax

Unrealized investments gains $ 347,079 $ 273,459
Adjustments to DAC, PVIF and DSI (311,641) (226,657)
Deferred tax valuation allowance (1,251) (2,001)
Deferred income tax liability (12,478) (16,354)
Net unrealized investment gains, net of tax 21,709 28,447
Other, net of tax (494) (784)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax $ 21,215 $ 27,663

Changes in net unrealized gains and losses on investment securities classified as AFS recognized in other
comprehensive income and loss for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 were as follows:

For the Three Months
Ended March 31,
2011 2010
Changes in unrealized investment gains:
Changes in unrealized investment gains before reclassification adjustment $ 76,739 $ 415,873
Net reclassification adjustment for gains included in net income (19,172) (58,255)
Changes in unrealized investment gains after reclassification adjustment 57,567 357,618
Adjustments to DAC, PVIF and DSI (71,018) (181,218)
Changes in deferred tax valuation allowance 750 43,137
Changes in deferred income tax asset/liability 4,606 (61,740)
Changes in net unrealized investment (losses) gains, net of tax (8,095) 157,797
Changes in non-credit related OTTI recognized in OCI:
Changes in non-credit related OTTI 16,053 (1,076)
Adjustments to DAC, PVIF and DSI (13,966) 655
Changes in deferred income tax asset/liability (730) 147
Changes in non-credit related OTTI, net of tax 1,357 (274)
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Other, net of tax 290 243

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax $ (6,448) $ 157,766

NOTE 10: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

The Company leases office space under non-cancelable operating leases that expire in May 2021. The Company also
leases office furniture and office equipment under noncancelable operating leases that expire in 2012. The Company is

not involved in any material sale-leaseback transactions. For the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, rent
expense was $524 and $586, respectively.
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At March 31, 2011, the minimum rental commitments under the non-cancelable leases are as follows:

Years Ending December 31: Amount
2011 (nine months) $ 1,692
2012 2,031
2013 1,967
2014 2,026
2015 2,026
Thereafter 12,659
Total $ 22,401

The Company subleases a portion of its office space under a non-cancelable lease which expires in May 2011. The
minimum aggregate rental commitment on this sublease is $143. The total rental amount to be received by the
Company under this sublease is $64.

Contingencies
Business Concentration, Significant Risks and Uncertainties

Financial markets in the United States and elsewhere have experienced extreme volatility and disruption for more than
two years, due largely to the stresses affecting the global banking system. Like other life insurers, the Company has
been adversely affected by these conditions. The Company is exposed to financial and capital markets risk, including
changes in interest rates and credit spreads which have had an adverse effect on the Company s results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity. As detailed in the following paragraph, the Company expects to continue to face
challenges and uncertainties that could adversely affect the Company s results of operations and financial condition.

The Company s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the market price and cash flow variability associated
with changes in interest rates. A rise in interest rates, in the absence of other countervailing changes, will increase the
net unrealized loss position of the Company s investment portfolio and, if long-term interest rates rise dramatically
within a six to twelve month time period, certain of the Company s products may be exposed to disintermediation risk.
Disintermediation risk refers to the risk that policyholders may surrender their contracts in a rising interest rate
environment, requiring the Company to liquidate assets in an unrealized loss position. This risk is mitigated to some
extent by the high level of surrender charge protection provided by the Company s products.

Regulatory and Litigation Matters

The Company is assessed amounts by the state guaranty funds to cover losses to policyholders of insolvent or
rehabilitated insurance companies. Those mandatory assessments may be partially recovered through a reduction in
future premium taxes in certain states. At March 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, the Company has accrued $6,995
and $7,225 for guaranty fund assessments, respectively. Future premium tax deductions at March 31, 2011 and
December 31, 2010 are estimated at $4,632 and $4,622, respectively.
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On April 19, 2010, the federal court approved a settlement of litigation related to an asserted class action
Ow/Negrete v. Fidelity & Guaranty Life Insurance Company pending in the United States District Court, Central
District of California. The Settlement Agreement Order became final on July 1, 2010 and provides for relief which is
available to persons age 65 and older who purchased certain deferred annuities with surrender charges of 7 years or
greater, with the exception of multi-year guaranteed annuities. The estimated cost for the settlement is $11,500, of
which $10,300 was paid in 2010. The Company had previously established a liability
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for the estimated cost of this settlement and, therefore, the settlement did not have a material effect on the Company s
results of operations in 2010.

In the ordinary course of its business, the Company is involved in various pending or threatened legal proceedings,
including purported class actions, arising from the conduct of business. In some instances, these proceedings include
claims for unspecified or substantial punitive damages and similar types of relief in addition to amounts for alleged
contractual liability or requests for equitable relief. In the opinion of management and in light of existing insurance,
reinsurance and established reserves, such litigation is not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company s
financial position, although it is possible that the results of operations could be materially affected by an unfavorable
outcome in any one annual period.

NOTE 11: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after March 31, 2011 through June 15, 2011, the
date these financial statements were available to be issued. During this period, the Company did not have any material
recognizable subsequent events; however, the Company did have unrecognizable subsequent events as discussed
below:

Purchase agreement involving the Company

On April 6, 2011, pursuant to the First Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of February 17,
2011 (the F&G Stock Purchase Agreement ), between Harbinger F&G and OMGUK, Harbinger F&G acquired from
OMGUK all of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company and OMGUK s interest in certain notes
receivable from the Company in consideration for $350,000, which could be reduced by up to $50,000 post closing if
certain regulatory approval is not received. The Company s obligation to OMGUK under the notes, including interest,
was $248,505 at March 31, 2011 and was assigned to Harbinger F&G concurrently with the closing of the transaction
pursuant to terms of a Deed of Novation. Approval of the transaction was received from the Maryland Insurance
Administration on March 31, 2011 and from the New York State Insurance Department on April 1, 2011.

Prior to the closing of the sale transaction, OMGUK financed a total of $775,000 of statutory reserves ceded to Old
Mutual Reassurance (Ireland) Ltd. ( OM Re ) with a letter of credit (See Note 6 for a description of other indebtedness).
OMGUK will continue to provide this financing after closing in the following manner:

Statutory reserves of $280,000 ceded to OM Re on annuity business will be financed by OMGUK through
letters of credit. This requirement for reserves is expected to decrease significantly over the next few years.

OMGUK will act as the legal guarantor of up to $535,000 of statutory reserves previously ceded to OM Re on
the life insurance business until December 31, 2012. Harbinger F&G also serves as a guarantor.

As part of the transaction the long-term notes from affiliated companies of OM, discussed in Note 6 were settled for
the principal amount plus accrued interest.

The Company possesses certain tax attributes, including the net operating loss carryforwards, capital loss

carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards discussed in Note 8, which will become annually limited in terms of
realization as a consequence of the acquisition of the Company by Harbinger F&G from OMGUK.
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Additionally, the F&G Stock Purchase Agreement between Harbinger F&G and OMGUK includes a Guarantee and
Pledge Agreement which creates certain obligations for the Company as a grantor and also grants a security interest to
OMGUK of the Company s equity interest in FGL Insurance in the event that Harbinger F&G fails to perform in
accordance with the terms of the F&G Stock Purchase Agreement.

F-370
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FIDELITY & GUARANTY LIFE HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UNAUDITED) (Continued)
Reinsurance transactions

On April 7, 2011, FGL Insurance recaptured all of the life insurance business ceded to OM Re. OM Re transferred
assets with a fair value of $664,132 to FGL Insurance in settlement of all of OM Re s obligations under these
reinsurance agreements. On April 7, 2011, FGL Insurance re-ceded on a coinsurance basis a significant portion of this
business to a newly-formed, wholly-owned captive reinsurance company, Raven Reinsurance Company ( Raven Re ),
domiciled in Vermont. Raven Re was capitalized by a $250 capital contribution from FGL Insurance and a surplus
note issued to OMGUK in the principal amount of $95,000. Raven Re will finance up to $535,000 of the reserves for
this business with a letter of credit facility provided by a financial institution and guaranteed by OMGUK and
Harbinger F&G.

On January 26, 2011, Harbinger F&G entered into a commitment agreement with an unaffiliated reinsurer committing
FGL Insurance to enter into two amendments to an existing treaty with the unaffiliated reinsurer. On April 8, 2011,
FGL Insurance also ceded significantly all of the remaining life insurance business that it had retained to the
unaffiliated reinsurance company under the first of the two amendments with the unaffiliated reinsurer. FGL Insurance
transferred assets with a fair value of $423,673 to the unaffiliated entity and received a ceding commission of
$139,600. Under the terms of the commitment agreement Harbinger F&G could make an election between two
versions of the third amendment to the existing treaty. On April 26, 2011, Harbinger F&G elected the amendment that
commits FGL Insurance to cede to this unaffiliated reinsurance company all of the business currently reinsured with
Raven Re by November 30, 2012, subject to regulatory approval. The third amendment is intended to mitigate the risk
associated with Harbinger F&G s obligation under the F&G Stock Purchase Agreement to replace the Raven Re
reserve facility by December 31, 2012.

F-371
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Harbinger Group Inc.

$150,000,000 10.625% Senior Secured Notes Due 2015

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in
this prospectus, and, if given or made, any information or representations must not be relied upon as having been
authorized. This prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other
than the securities to which it relates or an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy these securities in any
circumstances in which this offer or solicitation is unlawful. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sale made
under this prospectus shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the
affairs of Harbinger Group Inc. since the date of this prospectus.

Table of Contents 78



Edgar Filing: Townsend Christopher G - Form 4

Table of Contents
PART II
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
ITEM 20. INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS.
Certificate of Incorporation

Section 145 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the DGCL ) provides that a corporation may
indemnify directors and officers, as well as employees and agents, against expenses (including attorneys fees),
judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement, that are actually and reasonably incurred in connection with various
actions, suits or proceedings, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative other than an action by or in the
right of the corporation, known as a derivative action, if they acted in good faith and in a manner they reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or
proceeding, if they had no reasonable cause to believe their conduct was unlawful. A similar standard is applicable in
the case of derivative actions, except that indemnification only extends to expenses (including attorneys fees) actually
and reasonably incurred in connection with the defense or settlement of such actions, and the statute requires court
approval before there can be any indemnification if the person seeking indemnification has been found liable to the
corporation. The statute provides that it is not excluding other indemnification that may be granted by a corporation s
bylaws, disinterested director vote, stockholder vote, agreement or otherwise.

The Certificate of Incorporation provides that the personal liability of the directors of HGI is eliminated to the fullest
extent permitted by the DGCL, including, without limitation, paragraph (7) of subsection (b) of Section 102 thereof,
as the same may be amended or supplemented. If the DGCL is amended to authorize corporate action further
eliminating or limiting the personal liability of directors, then the liability of a director of HGI shall be eliminated or
limited to the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL, as so amended.

The Certificate of Incorporation also contains an indemnification provision that provides that HGI shall have the
power, to the fullest extent permitted by Section 145 of the DGCL, as the same may be amended or supplemented, to
indemnify any person by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of HGI, or is
or was serving at the request of HGI as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint
venture, trust or other enterprise from and against any and all of the expenses, liabilities or other matters referred to in
or covered by said section, and the indemnification provided for herein shall not be deemed exclusive of any other
rights to which those indemnified may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested
directors or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action in another capacity while
holding such office, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent and
shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such person.

The Certificate of Incorporation also provides that neither any amendment nor repeal of the indemnification or the
exculpation provision thereof, nor the adoption of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation inconsistent with
the indemnification or the exculpation provision thereof, whether by amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation or
by merger, reorganization, recapitalization or other corporate transaction having the effect of amending the Certificate
of Incorporation, shall eliminate or reduce the effect of the indemnification or the exculpation provision in respect of
any matter occurring, or any action or proceeding accruing or arising or that, but for the indemnification or the
exculpation provision, would accrue or arise, prior to such amendment, repeal or adoption of an inconsistent
provision.

Bylaws
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The Bylaws provide that each person who is or was a director of HGI shall be indemnified and advanced expenses by
HGI to the fullest extent permitted from time to time by the DGCL as it existed on the date of the adoption of the
Bylaws or as it may thereafter be amended (but, if permitted by applicable law, in the case of any such amendment,
only to the extent that such amendment permits HGI to provide broader indemnification rights than said law permitted
HGI to provide prior to such amendment) or any other applicable laws as
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presently or hereafter in effect. HGI may, by action of its board of directors, provide indemnification and advance
expenses to officers, employees and agents (other than directors) of HGI, to directors, officers, employees or agents of
a subsidiary, and to each person serving as a director, officer, partner, member, employee or agent of another
corporation, partnership, limited liability company, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, at the request of HGI (each
of the foregoing, a Covered Person ), with the same scope and effect as the foregoing indemnification of directors of
HGI. HGI shall be required to indemnify any person seeking indemnification in connection with a proceeding (or part
thereof) initiated by such person only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by HGI s board of directors
or is a proceeding to enforce such person s claim to indemnification pursuant to the rights granted by the Bylaws or
otherwise by HGI. Without limiting the generality or the effect of the foregoing, HGI may enter into one or more
agreements with any person which provide for indemnification or advancement of expenses greater or different than
that provided in the Bylaws.

The Bylaws also contain a provision that provides that any right to indemnification or to advancement of expenses of
any Covered Person arising pursuant to the Bylaws shall not be eliminated or impaired by an amendment to or repeal
of the Bylaws after the occurrence of the act or omission that is the subject of the civil, criminal, administrative or
investigative action, suit or proceeding for which indemnification or advancement of expenses is sought.

To the extent and in the manner permitted by law, HGI also has the right to indemnify and to advance expenses to
persons other than Covered Persons when and as authorized by appropriate corporate action.

Indemnification Agreements

HGI enters into indemnification agreements with its directors and officers which may, in certain cases, be broader
than the specific indemnification provisions contained in its Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws. The
indemnification agreements may require HGI, among other things, to indemnify such officers and directors against
certain liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service as directors, officers or employees of HGI and to
advance the expenses incurred by such parties as a result of any threatened claims or proceedings brought against
them as to which they could be indemnified.

Liability Insurance

In addition, HGI maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers. This insurance provides for coverage,
subject to certain exceptions, against loss from claims made against directors and officers in their capacity as such,
including claims under the federal securities laws.

ITEM 21. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibits

2.1  Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 4, 2009, by and between, Zapata Corporation
( Zapata ), a Nevada corporation, and Harbinger Group Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned
subsidiary of Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed December 28, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).

2.2 Contribution and Exchange Agreement, dated as of September 10, 2010, by and among Harbinger Group
Inc., Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Fund,
L.P. and Global Opportunities Breakaway Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 14, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).
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2.3  Amendment, dated as of November 5, 2010, to the Contribution and Exchange Agreement, dated as of
September 10, 2010, by and among Harbinger Group Inc., Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd.,
Harbinger Capital Special Situations Fund, L.P. and Global Opportunities Breakaway Ltd (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2010 filed November 9, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).
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Exhibit
No.

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2
43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1°%

8.1°%*
10.1
10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Description of Exhibits

Certificate of Incorporation of Harbinger Group Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 28, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).

Bylaws of Harbinger Group Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 28, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).

Indenture governing the 10.625% Senior Secured Noted due 2015, dated as of November 15, 2010, by and
among Harbinger Group Inc. and Wells Fargo, National Association, as trustee (Incorporated herein by
reference to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed January 28, 2011 (File

No. 333-171924)).

Form of Exchange Note (Included as Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of this Registration Statement).

Certificate of Designation of Series A Participating Convertible Preferred Stock of Harbinger Group Inc.,
dated as of May 12, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed May 13, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).

Security Agreement, dated as of January 7, 2011, between Harbinger Group Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 filed January 28, 2011 (File No. 333-171924)).

Collateral Trust Agreement, dated as of January 7, 2011, between Harbinger Group Inc. and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 filed January 28, 2011 (File No. 333-171924)).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of September 10, 2010, by and among Harbinger Group Inc.,
Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Fund, L.P.
and Global Opportunities Breakaway Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 14, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Supplemental Indenture, dated June 22, 2011, to the indenture governing the Company s 10.625% Senior
Secured Notes due 2015, dated November 15, 2010, by and between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, a national banking association, as trustee. (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit No. 4.1 to the Company s Current Report on form 8-K filed June 23, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).
Second Supplemental Indenture, dated June 28, 2011, to the indenture governing the Company s
10.625% Senior Secured Notes due 2015, dated November 15, 2010, by and between the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, a national banking association, as trustee. (Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit No. 4.1 to the Company s Current Report on form 8-K filed June 28, 2011 (File
No. 1-4219)).

Opinion of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP as to the validity of the exchange notes.
Opinion of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP as to certain tax matters.

Zapata Supplemental Pension Plan effective as of April 1, 1992 (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(b) to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1992
(File No. 1-4219)).

Zapata Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 3, 2007 (File No. 1-4219)).
Investment and Distribution Agreement between Zap.Com and Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit No. 10.1 to Zap.Com s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 13, 1999, as amended
(File No. 333-76135)).

Services Agreement between Zap.Com and Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit No. 10.2
to Zap.Com s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 13, 1999, as amended (File No. 333-76135)).
Tax Sharing and Indemnity Agreement between Zap.Com and Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit No. 10.3 to Zap.Com s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed
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March 7, 2008 (File No. 333-76135)).
10.6  Registration Rights Agreement between Zap.Com and Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit No. 10.4 to Zap.Com s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 13, 1999, as amended (File
No. 333-76135)).
1I-3

Table of Contents 84



Edgar Filing: Townsend Christopher G - Form 4

Table of Contents

Exhibit

No.

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

Description of Exhibits

Form of February 28, 2003 Indemnification Agreement by and among Zapata and the directors and
officers of the Company (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(q) to the Company s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed March 26, 2003 (File No. 1-4219)).
Form of March 1, 2002 Director Stock Option Agreement by and among Zapata and the non-employee
directors of the Company (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(r) to the Company s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed March 26, 2003 (File No. 1-4219)).
Summary of Zapata Corporation Senior Executive Retiree Health Care Benefit Plan (Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10(u) to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006 filed March 13, 2007 (File No. 1-4219)).
Form of Indemnification Agreement by and among Zapata and Zap.Com Corporation and the Directors or
Officers of Zapata and Zap.Com Corporation. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 31, 2009 filed November 4,
2009 (File No. 1-4219)).
Form of Indemnification Agreement by and among Zapata and the Directors or Officers of Zapata only.
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 31, 2009 filed November 4, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).
Form of Indemnification Agreement by and among Harbinger Group Inc. and its Directors or Officers
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009 filed March 9, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).
Employment Agreement, dated as of the 24th day of December, 2009, by and between Francis T.
McCarron and Harbinger Group Inc., a Delaware corporation. (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 28, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).
Retention and Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 22, 2010 by and between Harbinger Group Inc.
and Leonard DiSalvo. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed January 28, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).
Management and Advisory Services Agreement, entered into as of March 1, 2010, by and between
Harbinger Capital Partners LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and Harbinger Group Inc.
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
March 5, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).
Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2011, between HGI and the initial purchaser named
therein (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit No. 4.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed June 28, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).
Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2011, by and among Harbinger Group Inc. and the
Holders party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed May 13, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).
Temporary Employment Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2011, by and between Richard Hagerup and
Harbinger Group Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed June 15, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).
Stockholder Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2010, by and among Harbinger Capital Partners Master
Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situation Fund, L.P., Global Opportunities Breakaway
Ltd. and Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc.; Harbinger Group Inc. became a party to this agreement on
January 7, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed November 5, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibits

10.20 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2010, by and among Harbinger Capital Partners
Master Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Fund, L.P., Global Opportunities
Breakaway Ltd., Avenue International Master, L.P., Avenue Investments, L.P., Avenue Special Situations
Fund IV, L.P., Avenue Special Situations Fund V, L.P., Avenue-CDP Global Opportunities Fund, L.P.
and Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc.; Harbinger Group Inc. became a party to this agreement on
January 7, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed November 5, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

10.21  Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 12, 2011, by and among Harbinger Group Inc., CF Turul LLC,
Providence TMT Debt Opportunity Fund II, L.P., PECM Strategic Funding L.P., and Wilton Re Holdings
Limited (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed May 13, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).

12.1*  Statement re Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

16.1 Letter from Deloitte & Touche LLP, dated as of January 7, 2011, regarding change in certifying
accountant (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 16.1 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed January 7, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).

21.1*  Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

23.1*  Consents of KPMG LLP.

23.2*  Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.

24.1* Powers of Attorney (included on signature page of this Part II).

25.1* Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.

99.1*  Form of Letter of Transmittal.

99.2*  Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

Exhibits and schedules to the Contribution and Exchange Agreement and other documents referenced therein have
been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b) (2) of Regulation S-K. The registrant will furnish supplementally a copy of
any omitted exhibit or schedule to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.

* Filed herewith
ITEM 22. UNDERTAKINGS.
(a) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes:

(1) To file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration
statement:

(1) To include any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act of 1933;

(i1) To reflect in the prospectus any facts or events arising after the effective date of the registration statement (or the
most recent post-effective amendment thereof) which, individually or in the aggregate, represent a fundamental
change in the information set forth in the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or
decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar value of securities offered would not exceed that which was
registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated maximum offering range may be reflected in
the form of prospectus filed with the SEC pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the aggregate, the changes in volume and
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price represent no more than 20 percent change in the maximum aggregate offering price set forth in the Calculation
of Registration Fee table in the effective registration statement;

(iii) To include any material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the
registration statement or any material change to such information in the registration statement.

(2) That, for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act of 1933, each such post-effective
amendment shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities
II-5
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offered therein, and the offering of such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering
thereof.

(3) To remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which
remain unsold at the termination of the offering.

(b) The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes to supply by means of a post-effective amendment all information
concerning a transaction, and the company being acquired involved therein, that was not the subject of and included in
the registration statement when it became effective.

(d) Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitted to directors,
officers and controlling persons of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrants
have been advised that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission such indemnification is against
public policy as expressed in the Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification
against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrants of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or
controlling person of the registrants in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such
director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in
the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate
jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in the Act and will be
governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

II-6
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, the registrant duly caused this registration statement to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of New York, State of New York, on
July 27, 2011.

HARBINGER GROUP INC.

By: /s/ Francis T. McCarron
Name: Francis T. McCarron
Title: Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each individual whose signature appears below hereby
constitutes and appoints Francis T. McCarron or Robin Roger or either of them his or her true and lawful agent, proxy
and attorney-in-fact, with full power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in
any and all capacities, to (i) act on, sign and file with the Securities and Exchange Commission any and all
amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement together with all schedules and
exhibits thereto and any subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, together with all schedules and exhibits thereto, (ii) act on, sign and file such certificates,
instruments, agreements and other documents as may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, (iii) act on
and file any supplement to any prospectus included in this registration statement or any such amendment or any
subsequent registration statement filed pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and

(iv) take any and all actions which may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith, granting unto such agent,
proxy and attorney-in-fact full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing necessary or
appropriate to be done, as fully for all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby approving,
ratifying and confirming all that such agents, proxies and attorneys-in-fact or any of their substitutes may lawfully do
or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, this registration statement has been signed by the following
persons in the following capacities and on this 27th day of July, 2011.

Signature Title
/s/ Philip A. Falcone Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)
Philip A. Falcone and Chairman of the Board of Directors
/s/ Francis T. McCarron Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)
Francis T. McCarron

/s/ Richard H. Hagerup Interim Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)
Richard H. Hagerup

Table of Contents 89



/s/ Omar M. Asali

Omar M. Asali
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Acting President and Director
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Signature

Lap Wai Chan
/s/ Keith M. Hladek

Keith M. Hladek

Thomas Hudgins

Robert V. Leffler, Jr.
/s/ David Maura
David Maura

/s/ Robin Roger

Robin Roger
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Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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2.1

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2
43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description of Exhibits

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of November 4, 2009, by and between, Zapata Corporation

( Zapata ), a Nevada corporation, and Harbinger Group Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned
subsidiary of Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed December 28, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).

Contribution and Exchange Agreement, dated as of September 10, 2010, by and among Harbinger Group
Inc., Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Fund,
L.P. and Global Opportunities Breakaway Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 14, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Amendment, dated as of November 5, 2010, to the Contribution and Exchange Agreement, dated as of
September 10, 2010, by and among Harbinger Group Inc., Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd.,
Harbinger Capital Special Situations Fund, L.P. and Global Opportunities Breakaway Ltd (Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2010 filed November 9, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Certificate of Incorporation of Harbinger Group Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 28, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).

Bylaws of Harbinger Group Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed December 28, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).

Indenture governing the 10.625% Senior Secured Noted due 2015, dated as of November 15, 2010, by and
among Harbinger Group Inc. and Wells Fargo, National Association, as trustee. (Incorporated herein by
reference to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed January 28, 2011 (File

No. 333-171924)).

Form of Exchange Note (Included as Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 of this Registration Statement).

Certificate of Designation of Series A Participating Convertible Preferred Stock of Harbinger Group Inc.,
dated as of May 12, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed May 13, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).

Security Agreement, dated as of January 7, 2011, between Harbinger Group Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association. (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 filed January 28, 2011 (File No. 333-171924)).

Collateral Trust Agreement, dated as of January 7, 2011, between Harbinger Group Inc. and Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association (Incorporated herein by reference to the Company s Registration Statement on
Form S-4 filed January 28, 2011 (File No. 333-171924)).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of September 10, 2010, by and among Harbinger Group Inc.,
Harbinger Capital Partners Master Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Fund, L.P.
and Global Opportunities Breakaway Ltd. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 14, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Supplemental Indenture, dated June 22, 2011, to the indenture governing the Company s 10.625% Senior
Secured Notes due 2015, dated November 15, 2010, by and between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, a national banking association, as trustee. (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit No. 4.1 to the Company s Current Report on form 8-K filed June 23, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).
Second Supplemental Indenture, dated June 28, 2011, to the indenture governing the Company s

10.625% Senior Secured Notes due 2015, dated November 15, 2010, by and between the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, a national banking association, as trustee. (Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit No. 4.1 to the Company s Current Report on form 8-K filed June 28, 2011 (File

Table of Contents 92



Edgar Filing: Townsend Christopher G - Form 4

No. 1-4219)).
5.1*  Opinion of Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP as to the validity of the exchange notes.
8.1*  Opinion of Paul, Weiss, Riftkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP as to certain tax matters.
10.1 Zapata Supplemental Pension Plan effective as of April 1, 1992 (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10(b) to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1992
(File No. 1-4219)).
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Exhibit
No.

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Description of Exhibits

Zapata Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 3, 2007 (File No. 1-4219)).
Investment and Distribution Agreement between Zap.Com and Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit No. 10.1 to Zap.Com s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 13, 1999, as amended
(File No. 333-76135)).

Services Agreement between Zap.Com and Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit No. 10.2
to Zap.Com s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 13, 1999, as amended (File No. 333-76135)).
Tax Sharing and Indemnity Agreement between Zap.Com and Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit No. 10.3 to Zap.Com s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed
March 7, 2008 (File No. 333-76135)).

Registration Rights Agreement between Zap.Com and Zapata (Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit No. 10.4 to Zap.Com s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed April 13, 1999, as amended (File
No. 333-76135)).

Form of February 28, 2003 Indemnification Agreement by and among Zapata and the directors and
officers of the Company (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(q) to the Company s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed March 26, 2003 (File No. 1-4219)).
Form of March 1, 2002 Director Stock Option Agreement by and among Zapata and the non-employee
directors of the Company (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10(r) to the Company s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed March 26, 2003 (File No. 1-4219)).
Summary of Zapata Corporation Senior Executive Retiree Health Care Benefit Plan (Incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10(u) to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2006 filed March 13, 2007 (File No. 1-4219)).

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and among Zapata and Zap.Com Corporation and the Directors or
Officers of Zapata and Zap.Com Corporation. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 31, 2009 filed November 4,
2009 (File No. 1-4219)).

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and among Zapata and the Directors or Officers of Zapata only.
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 31, 2009 filed November 4, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and among Harbinger Group Inc. and its Directors or Officers
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009 filed March 9, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Employment Agreement, dated as of the 24th day of December, 2009, by and between Francis T.
McCarron and Harbinger Group Inc., a Delaware corporation. (Incorporated herein by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 28, 2009 (File No. 1-4219)).
Retention and Consulting Agreement, dated as of January 22, 2010 by and between Harbinger Group Inc.
and Leonard DiSalvo. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed January 28, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Management and Advisory Services Agreement, entered into as of March 1, 2010, by and between
Harbinger Capital Partners LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and Harbinger Group Inc.
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
March 5, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2011, between HGI and the initial purchaser named
therein (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit No. 4.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed June 28, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).
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10.17 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2011, by and among Harbinger Group Inc. and the
Holders party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed May 13, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).
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Exhibit
No.

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

12.1*
16.1

21.1%
23.1%
23.2%
24.1*
25.1%
99.1*
99.27%

Description of Exhibits

Temporary Employment Agreement, dated as of June 15, 2011, by and between Richard Hagerup and
Harbinger Group Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed June 15, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).

Stockholder Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2010, by and among Harbinger Capital Partners Master
Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situation Fund, L.P., Global Opportunities Breakaway
Ltd. and Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc.; Harbinger Group Inc. became a party to this agreement on
January 7, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed November 5, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 9, 2010, by and among Harbinger Capital Partners
Master Fund I, Ltd., Harbinger Capital Partners Special Situations Fund, L.P., Global Opportunities
Breakaway Ltd., Avenue International Master, L.P., Avenue Investments, L.P., Avenue Special Situations
Fund IV, L.P., Avenue Special Situations Fund V, L.P., Avenue-CDP Global Opportunities Fund, L.P.
and Spectrum Brands Holdings, Inc.; Harbinger Group Inc. became a party to this agreement on

January 7, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed November 5, 2010 (File No. 1-4219)).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 12, 2011, by and among Harbinger Group Inc., CF Turul LLC,
Providence TMT Debt Opportunity Fund II, L.P., PECM Strategic Funding L.P., and Wilton Re Holdings
Limited (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed May 13, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).

Statement re Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Letter from Deloitte & Touche LLP, dated as of January 7, 2011, regarding change in certifying
accountant (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 16.1 to the Company s Current Report on

Form 8-K filed January 7, 2011 (File No. 1-4219)).

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consents of KPMG LLP.

Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.

Powers of Attorney (included on signature page of this Part II).

Form T-1 Statement of Eligibility of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association.

Form of Letter of Transmittal.

Form of Notice of Guaranteed Delivery.

Exhibits and schedules to the Contribution and Exchange Agreement and other documents referenced therein have
been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b) (2) of Regulation S-K. The registrant will furnish supplementally a copy of
any omitted exhibit or schedule to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.

* Filed herewith
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